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          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's joint Finance and Environmental

          4  Protection Committee hearing.  My name is David

          5  Weprin, and I am Chairman of the Finance Committee.

          6  On my immediate right is Jim Gennaro, who is Chair

          7  of the Environmental Protection Committee.

          8                 Today we are holding an oversight

          9  hearing on New York City's Water Board, proposed

         10  water rate increase, and how the proposed rate and

         11  future rates will be impacted by the Department of

         12  Environmental Protection's proposed 10-year capital

         13  strategy, which reflects and increase of $8.6

         14  billion.

         15                 We are also considering a resolution

         16  calling upon the Water Board to set this rate after

         17  the adoption of the City's Capital Budget, rather

         18  than next week, as is current practice.

         19                 In 1994, the Water Board committed to

         20  changing its rate setting schedule in an attempt to

         21  prevent the Council from acting legislatively, only

         22  to reneg on this commitment.

         23                 The Water Board is poised to enact a

         24  6.5 percent rate increase next week. Rather than

         25  wait until its Capital Budget for next year is
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          2  finally determined, which will chart the course at

          3  its 10-year strategy, the Board acts as if 2004's

          4  Capital Budget will have no impact on this year's

          5  rates.

          6                 It is true that the rates

          7  predominantly cover the cost of capital work already

          8  done or underway.  However, the rates are also

          9  calculated to cover operating expenses of the Board

         10  and debt service cost incurred as a result of Fiscal

         11  2004 Capital projects.

         12                 In addition, better information upon

         13  which the rates should be based is now available.

         14  Based on the latest information the City Council is

         15  estimating that the surplus for Fiscal Year 2003

         16  will be $187.4 million.  If this is the case, the

         17  rate increase imposed last year was not necessary

         18  because the whole increase would be used or rolled

         19  over into Fiscal Year 2004. Additionally, using the

         20  latest information for Fiscal Year 2004 debt service

         21  and operating cost projections, the City Council

         22  Finance Division's analysis indicates that only a

         23  2.3 percent increase is necessary.

         24                 Although, we hope to touch upon each

         25  of these issues, it is unlikely that we will be able
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          2  to hash through this complicated issue in its entity

          3  today.  Rather, this Committee would like you to

          4  agree to sit down with our Finance Division staff

          5  this week to compare your respective analyses.

          6  Perhaps a more sensible rate increase will emerge.

          7                 This Committee is also calling upon

          8  DEP to provide a detailed explanation of and

          9  justification for the $8.6 billion increase in the

         10  10- year capital plan.  Both Chairperson Gennaro and

         11  myself have requested in writing from the Water

         12  Board and DEP details on the proposed increased

         13  expenditures and other alternatives that were

         14  considered.  It is imperative that we understand the

         15  scope and need for these expenditures for budget

         16  adoption.  To say we are troubled by the water rate

         17  issues by the Administration's attempt to railroad

         18  the $8.6 billion increase in DEP's proposed capital

         19  plan, which will undoubtedly affect future water

         20  rates, and by the impact of all of this can have on

         21  our City's residence is an understatement.  We will

         22  take whatever measures are necessary to determine

         23  the fairness of the eminent and future rate

         24  increases, as well as the appropriateness of the

         25  proposed capital strategy.
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          2                 The Committees will also be hearing

          3  Resolution No. 794, which would re- establish a six-

          4  year time rate for which customers can challenge

          5  water charges.  I now would like to turn the mic

          6  over to the Chair of the Environmental Protection

          7  Committee, Council Member Gennaro.  And actually

          8  before I do that, I just want to introduce a couple

          9  of our colleagues that are here as well, on our

         10  immediate left is, far left, is Council Member Gale

         11  Brewer from Manhattan; and next to her, on her

         12  immediate right is Council Member Mike Nelson from

         13  Brooklyn; and on the far right, although not

         14  usually, is Council Member Oliver Koppell from the

         15  Bronx.

         16                 Chair Gennaro.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  David.  I just want to follow- up a little bit on

         19  David's comments and remarks.  I think everything

         20  that needed to be said at the outset of the hearing

         21  has been said.  I just want to sort of support his

         22  request for our respective staffs to sit down and go

         23  over some of these numbers as I spoke to the Finance

         24  Division.  Over the weekend, they have indicated

         25  that they have worked up an analysis that indicated
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          2  that perhaps we really only have to do a 2.3 percent

          3  increase. Certainly, it go my attention when they

          4  indicated that perhaps the rate increase for last

          5  year was not necessary, that certainly got my

          6  attention.

          7                 So, we look forward to the

          8  opportunity to have our staffs get together to go

          9  over these numbers.  So I wanted to support that,

         10  and also follow- up a little bit on what David said

         11  about Resolution 794, which would re- establish the

         12  six- year time frame for people to be able to

         13  challenge there, you know, water and sewer bills.

         14  This is something, which is customary in other

         15  utilities in New York State.  We think it is

         16  appropriate for the people in the City to have the

         17  same opportunity, so we will be delving into that as

         18  well.

         19                 So, I do not want to belabor the

         20  opening segment of the hearing, and so, I thank you,

         21  Commissioner for being here and the staff of the

         22  Water Board, and the Water Finance Authority.  And

         23  so, we look forward to today's proceedings.

         24                 Before we begin, which is our

         25  practice, the Counsel to the Committee will provide
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          2  the oath in one moment.  Okay, thank you,

          3  Commissioner, Donna will provide the oath and then

          4  you can proceed with your good testimony, thank you.

          5                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          6  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

          7  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          8  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I do.

         10                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you have

         12  written statement, Commissioner?  Okay, sure.  Would

         13  it be appropriate to have the other Water Board

         14  staff with you, or do you want to, will they be

         15  making statements, as well?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Yes, I guess the

         17  way I thought I would proceed is that I have some

         18  general remarks and some specific responses to the

         19  Council.  And then I assume there will be a myriad

         20  of questions, and depending on where it is coming

         21  from, whether it is a DEP issue or Water Finance

         22  authority, I would bring up relevant staff to answer

         23  any questions that you may have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, okay,

         25  thank you, Commissioner.

                                                            11

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.  Thank you

          3  for the opportunity to be here today and present the

          4  Department of Environmental Protection's responsible

          5  for Council, as well as to set forth again our 10-

          6  year capital plan.  And much of what I am going to

          7  be saying today, was reflected in my earlier remarks

          8  before the Council, and I, obviously, would be

          9  delighted to have staff meet with both the Finance

         10  Committee and the Environmental Committee to go

         11  through the financial analyses that are contained

         12  within the 10- year plan, as well as the Water

         13  Board, I think that would be a very useful exercise.

         14                 But I would kind of like to start off

         15  on a little bit of history in a somewhat cautionary

         16  note here.  And to place what we are discussing

         17  within a larger kind of long- term political

         18  context, and a longer term DEP context.  And it is

         19  not specifically, as it relates to water rates and

         20  the setting of water rates.  Rather what it refers

         21  to is the history of DEP and water projects and the

         22  environment for the City of New York, and how,

         23  perhaps, it is unlike other capital agenda.  And I

         24  think, if you think back in 1973 the Clean Water Act

         25  was passed largely because the Cuyahoga River
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          2  outside of Cleveland caught fire.

          3                 At that time, the City embarked on a

          4  major program, capital program for the cleaning of

          5  the rivers and the estuaries around the harbor.  And

          6  in 1973 to 1976, the great vision for construction

          7  of the North River Sewage Treatment Plant was

          8  undertaken.  And the North River Sewage Treatment

          9  Plant was intended to treat all of the human waste

         10  that was created in New York City from essentially

         11  the George Washington Bridge down to Canal Street

         12  and then over to Central Park.  Up until that point,

         13  and it is almost impossible to imagine both the

         14  environmental and then the quality of life and

         15  economic implications of all of that waste going

         16  directly into the Hudson River, untreated.  And I

         17  have lived at 111th Street for more than 20 years,

         18  and used Riverside Park.

         19                 While that project was going forward,

         20  unfortunately, the City went through its fiscal

         21  crisis, and up until that point, the Department of

         22  Environmental Protection's capital budget was a tax

         23  levy function.  Each year the necessary resources

         24  were appropriated.  Unfortunately, given the tax

         25  levy implications of the fiscal crisis, the multiple
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          2  million dollars, which had already been spent for

          3  creating the North River Sewage Plant was then

          4  suddenly not funded, and I do not know if the

          5  Council remembers or the audience have seen the

          6  pictures of the enormous pile caps that were laid in

          7  the Hudson River, which had to mothballed due to the

          8  lack of financial incapability to complete that

          9  project.

         10                 So the City went through, 1976, 1977,

         11  went through that difficult fiscal crisis.  And

         12  there was a larger vision then, which said that

         13  water quality projects, water supply projects needed

         14  to have a longer term integrity of their own.  So,

         15  DEP's budget was taken off line, the Water Finance

         16  Authority was created, and the Water Board mechanism

         17  through water and sewer rates were created.  And in

         18  some sense, that is one of the great legacies of the

         19  Clean Water Act, because while we were not able to

         20  finish the project on time as it had been expected,

         21  in 1983, 10 years after that plan was originally

         22  scoped and proposed, the North River Sewage

         23  Treatment Plant was finally built.  And the quality

         24  of the water in the Hudson River, and then the upper

         25  estuaries is now at a level, which is unprecedented,

                                                            14

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  and people love to tell the stories of the Marine

          3  Boars, who returned back to the harbor, and they are

          4  now eating away the wood piles of many of the

          5  historic piers around the harbor.

          6                 But I use that as a table setter in a

          7  cautionary tale on the Department of Environmental

          8  Protection's fundamental mission is a mission which

          9  goes back 100 years and will go forward 100 years,

         10  and the implications of tax levy funding was one

         11  acknowledged as being increasingly problematic at an

         12  urban cycle of boomerang and burst.  And that you

         13  could not have that long- term capability.

         14                 And having said that, I think the

         15  Water Finance Board and the Authority created a

         16  mechanism for the City to begin to articulate what

         17  long- term capital projects would be, and how they

         18  should then be funded.

         19                 So, where does that leave us today,

         20  and where is the Department of Environmental

         21  Protection?  One of the things that the Bloomberg

         22  Administration did at the outset, when I became

         23  Commissioner of the Department was to say, what is

         24  the built environment that New York City deserves?

         25  We are not an environment which is fundamentally a
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          2  preservation environment.  We are an environment, in

          3  which New York has always done, build itself anew

          4  every day.  And how can we build a new environment

          5  for New Yorkers over the next 10 or 15 years?  And

          6  what would be your priorities for that environment,

          7  and where would you spend your money?

          8                 So, we undertook a capital process,

          9  which looked at all of the things that the City and

         10  our Bureaus, whether it is waste water, water

         11  supply, or water and sewer, all of those things that

         12  you would want to do.  All of the things that the

         13  federal government has told us to do, and all of the

         14  things that the State government has told us to do,

         15  and what would that number be.  Well, unfortunately,

         16  would be upwards of $25 billion for the next 10

         17  years, and that is taking everything that we think

         18  would build a better environment for the City, as

         19  well as other people would build for the City of New

         20  York.

         21                 Clearly, the Mayor to his enormous

         22  credit understood that clearly water and sewer rates

         23  of $25 billion dollars would fundamentally

         24  destabilize the economy of the City.  If you think

         25  back, similarly, to the rate increases which are
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          2  occurring in the Water Finance Board in the

          3  eighties, you began to see double digit increases,

          4  which led to the destabilization of housing up in

          5  the Bronx, and elsewhere around the City.  And the

          6  three pillars of the City's economy transportation,

          7  water and housing, would not be able to withstand

          8  that type of rate increase.  So, we step back and

          9  said, responsibly, what would you do if you knew you

         10  had to build this environment, but you faced the

         11  fiscal reality that water and sewer rates cannot go

         12  to double digits, that they need to remain within a

         13  modest single digit range and still achieve and

         14  environmental agenda, which New York fully

         15  acknowledges what would rebuild the City for the

         16  next 50 years.

         17                 Having said that, we also acknowledge

         18  that earlier in the budget making cycle and how the

         19  City ended up setting its capital plan for DEP,

         20  there was a fundamental lack of transparency that

         21  said a 10- year plan was a fully funded 10- year

         22  plan, but rather, the plan was presented much in the

         23  framework as other municipalities do, we will deal

         24  with our four to five- year sets of needs.  And then

         25  in the out years, we will determine how much money
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          2  we need in those outer years.  And that has been a

          3  process to which, in all candor, had worked fairly

          4  successfully and allowed DEP to be without a doubt,

          5  one of the largest and most progressive capital

          6  agency within the City.

          7                 But, unfortunately, it allowed and

          8  created major financial anomalies for people who

          9  were doing long- term strategic capital planning for

         10  how the City would be over the next 10 years. And I

         11  remember in a testimony that I was giving in another

         12  forum, not testimony, just public hearing, there

         13  were housing advocates who were asking, how come

         14  when I look at your 10- year capital plan and you

         15  talked about projects which are upwards of $1.4

         16  billion, all we are seeing is $400 million and a 10-

         17  year plan.  And that was because the way we were

         18  funding it, we were funding it in the first four

         19  years, but we were then essentially relying on a

         20  financial capacity to come back and fully fund those

         21  programs in the out years.

         22                 Unfortunately, as all cities- -  This

         23  is my political curse to be always testifying when

         24  this rings, pardon me. And that many of the other

         25  municipalities approach this in the same way, in
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          2  terms of funding in the out years.  Well,

          3  unfortunately, today we are living in the out years.

          4  That the confluence of capital requirements, federal

          5  mandates, state mandates, O&M on where our

          6  facilities are in upgrades for both our water supply

          7  and our waste water treatment have brought us

          8  together in a program, which now needs to be both

          9  acknowledged, transparent, and fully funded in order

         10  so that when New Yorkers pay water and sewer rates

         11  will see what is the built environment that the

         12  Bloomberg Administration in DEP is prepared to fund

         13  for them.

         14                 So, within that exercise we have the

         15  fiscal constraints of a water and sewer rate

         16  increase, which clearly could not sustain a $25

         17  billion plan.  But would have been unreasonable in a

         18  sense that it was not transparent, if you continue

         19  to go with the budget- making strategy of not

         20  funding fully in the out years, that we ended up

         21  saying, we need to fund this program, we need to be

         22  able to articulate what the agenda is for the City

         23  of New York, and we need to have water and sewer

         24  rates, which are fundamentally manageable with the

         25  larger, economic climate of the City of New York.

                                                            19

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 So, where does that leave us?  The

          3  approved 10- year DEP capital plan today totals

          4  $16.5 billion.  Twice the size of the preliminary

          5  plan of $7.9 billion.  And as I have said, DEP's

          6  plan takes into account all of the pressing

          7  infrastructure needs of the City's conveyance

          8  system, while continuing significant upgrades in our

          9  waste water treatment facilities, and our plan

         10  balances these needs against the need for increases

         11  in water and sewer rates.

         12                 Having said that, I think it is

         13  critical that people focus on what this plan is, in

         14  fact, doing.  And note that in comparison to the 10-

         15  year plan presented by the Mayor earlier this year,

         16  most of the increases in our final plan our

         17  currently out years, 2008 to 2013.  The plan for

         18  2004 to 2007 totals $7.2 billion, only 10 percent

         19  more than the preliminary plan.  So, we have not

         20  taken our capital plan and then exploded it in the

         21  early years, you have seen a fairly modest, an

         22  increase that to, in fact, would be obviated by

         23  changes in interest rates.  We have seen a 10

         24  percent increase for these early years, and the

         25  increase that we are discussing takes place in the
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          2  outer years.

          3                 And our capital budget for Fiscal

          4  Year 2004 is, in fact, less than what was presented

          5  in the preliminary plan. Rather, what we have done

          6  is step back and say, this is what we have said we

          7  were going to build, we will fully fund those

          8  projects that we said we would build, and then where

          9  are critical need.  So the large increase in 2008

         10  and 2013 reflects a commitment to investing a needed

         11  water supply infrastructure improvement.

         12                 And I have said this before the

         13  Council and in front of many groups, the City's

         14  truly, magnificent water supply system, which

         15  provides 1.3 billion gallons of fresh water to our

         16  customers every day is old, in some cases over 100

         17  years old, in some cases even older than that, and

         18  it needs work.  And our out plan reflects that,

         19  DEP's fundamental mission to the City must be the

         20  continued service of fresh, cold drinking water, not

         21  today, not 10 years, for 50 years.

         22                 So because of that, within our out

         23  year capital plan, we have $1.7 billion for a new

         24  Kensico Reservoir to City Tunnel for critical, long-

         25  term, supply redundancy.  And I have spoken about
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          2  this before, but it bears repeating that the

          3  Catskill/ Delaware aqueducts that are east of the

          4  Hudson are beginning to show the where and tear of

          5  systems that are 75 to 100 years old.  I think I

          6  refer to it as the snap, crackle, pop of a system

          7  that is not in jeopardy today.  But will it be in

          8  jeopardy 30 years from now, in 50 years from now?

          9  The answer to that is probably yes, but starting a

         10  large scale capital program now, we can, within the

         11  next 15 years, make sure that should one of those

         12  tunnels, one of those conveyance tunnels fail, we

         13  will have sufficient redundancy to bring water down

         14  in the City.  Absent that, we would be facing

         15  potentially loss of 50 percent of the City's

         16  drinking water.

         17                 Having said that, we have also

         18  committed $1.2 billion for water dependability and

         19  alternative supply studies. This last drought was a

         20  cautionary note for all of us.  With the climate

         21  change, we will see the frequency of droughts and

         22  then surcharges of weather occurring more

         23  frequently.  How we manage our water supply given

         24  that new sign curve for weather is increasingly

         25  important in terms of meeting the City needs.
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          2                 By the same token, there is the

          3  longstanding, much debated and speculated about

          4  Delaware Aqueduct leak, a leak west of the Hudson on

          5  the Delaware Aqueduct which leaks about 39 million

          6  gallons a day.  Luckily, that leak is sustaining

          7  itself and not accelerating, so we do not see a risk

          8  today in the same way we would see, by the way, when

          9  I use the word "today" I am really talking about a

         10  timeframe of 15 to 20 years.  While we do not see a

         11  risk in that aqueduct today, at some point that leak

         12  could accelerate, and if we were to lose the

         13  Delaware Aqueduct at that point, we would have to

         14  provide upwards of 400 million gallons of additional

         15  drinking water to the City of New York.  Just so you

         16  know, it took almost $600 million in conservation

         17  initiatives to buy basically 300 million gallons of

         18  water supply savings over 10 years.  So that is a

         19  long- term risk, and it is a very long- term risk,

         20  but it is on that we have put $1.2 billion within

         21  our capital plan for.

         22                 Similarly, as we testified in front

         23  of the Council, we are looking at some more creative

         24  water supply opportunities to address the issue that

         25  is occurring in southeast Queens.  Southeast Queens
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          2  has historically been served by the Jamaica Water

          3  System and its well system, which has not been the

          4  type of water quality that the City would expect for

          5  all of its constituencies.  And we have worked well

          6  this past year with elected officials to bring on

          7  water supply in that area.

          8                 We believe, however, that there may

          9  be an enormous opportunity to use the deep Lourdea

         10  Aquifer out in Brooklyn and Queens, take the

         11  surplus, which we now have given the seasonal rains

         12  and snow that we have, and inject, perhaps, 300

         13  million gallons of water into that aquifer, then

         14  draw it back up into the system as we needed in

         15  drought.  This again, could be very expensive, but

         16  nonetheless a creative, large term solution for

         17  water dependability in the City.

         18                 I would add that the 1.2 billion that

         19  we are currently carrying in no way would fully fund

         20  a west of Hudson, Delaware Aqueduct solution, should

         21  it require another whole level of conveyance.  The

         22  large increase in out year plan expenditures also

         23  results from our efforts to create a fully 10- year

         24  plan.  A plan that accounts for the needs of our

         25  system, not just in five years, but for the longer

                                                            24

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  term.  But compared to the preliminary plan, there

          3  are increases for program such as wastewater

          4  nitrogen removal, upgrades to the wastewater

          5  treatment facilities, and investments in combined

          6  sewer overflow, retainers as well as other needed

          7  programs.

          8                 Even with the $16.5 billion plan, it

          9  should be understood that some ongoing programs

         10  though cannot be funded at the levels that they had

         11  before.  And I testified before the Council as it

         12  relates to the nitrogen reduction program.

         13  Currently, DEP is meeting its five- year targets, we

         14  have done consistent modeling, we believe we will

         15  meet the 10- year targets, we think we have a

         16  prudent, nitrogen reduction program, which is with

         17  the waste water upgrades, approximately $1.7

         18  billion, however, that is not the amount that the

         19  federal government, or the state government would

         20  like us to spend on that program.  Rather, what we

         21  are proposing is that we spend the 1.7 see where we

         22  are, continue to meet those commitments, bring

         23  creative and innovative technology into waste water,

         24  and finally determine what is the best way to spend

         25  that money.  I would hate to be the Commissioner who
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          2  has recommend to New York City that we spend upwards

          3  of $3 billion for nitrogen reduction program that we

          4  do not, yet, have the science or technology to be

          5  sure having spent that money, we will get that level

          6  of results.

          7                 The 6.5 percent water rate increase

          8  proposed by the Water Board this year, we believe,

          9  represents a prudent balance between adequately

         10  funding the ongoing needs of our capital program.

         11  And I would also speak here about upwards of $700

         12  million that DEP is proposing to spend, simply on

         13  things like dam upgrades, valve chamber upgrades,

         14  the basic hard infrastructure, which makes our water

         15  supply system possible, creating a stable financial

         16  structure for future capital needs, and taking into

         17  account the financial burden on New York.

         18                 Smaller rate increases this year will

         19  create just larger ones, even in the double- digit

         20  range for future years, a prospect that the Water

         21  Board simply wants to avoid.  This year's increase

         22  totals about three dollars a month for a typical

         23  family residents, again.  No one wants to raise

         24  rates.  The Mayor did not want to raise property

         25  taxes; nonetheless, we have a long- term financial
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          2  obligation to that system.  The rate increase that

          3  we are proposing this year of 6.5 percent, we

          4  believe is prudent.

          5                 One of the things that the Council

          6  should be aware of, that a 1 percent increase in

          7  rates totals an embedded financial capacity of about

          8  $15 million a year, just to give you some order of

          9  magnitude on how the financial structure ends up

         10  working.  And there was in Councilman Weprin's

         11  introduction, there was some discussion about where

         12  we are with our cash reserves and our cash position.

         13    And I think this is a very important component of

         14  the Water Board and its financial stability.

         15                 As you are probably well aware, the

         16  Water Board does well when the financial market sees

         17  it as a stable long- term financing instrument.  So,

         18  for example, we could use cash reserves to eliminate

         19  this surplus to hold down rates, and simply be a

         20  dead issuance like agency.  I think the cautionary

         21  tale is if you look at the rating agencies, the

         22  Water Board rating agencies, because we carry the

         23  kind of surplus that we do, and then it is all not

         24  debt driven, gives us a chance to have high ratings,

         25  for example, than the City, which is subject to that
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          2  kind of annual appropriation. So, if for example, if

          3  you were to take out the 159, or whatever the number

          4  is, and you were to defease (sic) or to do it as a

          5  pay as- you- go capital program, something that we

          6  do.  The Council is correct, you could, in fact,

          7  ameliorate the rate increases.  The question is, it

          8  takes place in a complex financial world.

          9                 Would we continue to have the kind of

         10  AA ratings that we currently have, would the cost of

         11  borrowing then remain as low as it has, and in all

         12  likelihood you would see an increase in debt service

         13  and debt service cost, which would then be driving

         14  up the financial equation.  So, we do look where we

         15  are with our cash surplus, we do look at defeasement

         16  (sic), and we do look at it as pay- as- you- go.

         17  But the main thing that we attempt to do in setting

         18  rates, is to build a stable, financial environment

         19  for ratepayers in the City.  If you were to go

         20  through the kind of rate shocks because for one year

         21  we have decided we should go to zero, we should go

         22  to 2 or 3 percent, we are going to have to pay

         23  later, and you are going to see in our financial

         24  forecast, we have 6.5 percent for this year, and

         25  next year, it could be upwards of 9.4.  But if you
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          2  were to overlay a defeasement or a debonding

          3  strategy on top of that, you would see the double-

          4  digit rate increases, which we are seeking to avoid.

          5                 So what we are working to do is to

          6  find that level eyes' balance, and I should not do

          7  this, but I will, since there has been much

          8  discussion of where the MTA's budget --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Go ahead, go

         10  ahead.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  There has been

         12  much discussion about where the MTA's budget has - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  You look good

         14  next to them.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Well then I am

         16  glad that I brought it up.  I think the thing that

         17  is necessary and clear, and I hope my remarks

         18  reflect it, is that DEP's one capital plan is fully

         19  transparent.

         20                 2.  How we end up balancing long-

         21  term financial needs against the way we carry our

         22  debt, carry our surpluses, is one that people should

         23  understand because they are all part of the mix,

         24  which ameliorates either rate fluctuations or

         25  significant rate shocks.  So we think our $16
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          2  billion plan, with our strategy on debt, and our

          3  strategy with surplus is one that is thoughtful.

          4                 As Comptroller Hevesi, in fact,

          5  indicated in his report, the MTA's need for a budget

          6  increase was inevitable; it was a matter of timing

          7  and disclosure.  I am pleased to say that our plan

          8  is fully disclosed and transparent.

          9                 One of the things that the EPA and a

         10  lot of the other federal agencies end up talking

         11  about is the extent of where is water supply costs

         12  within the City of New York relative to other

         13  municipalities around the country.  And I am pleased

         14  to say, and unfortunately, it takes place within the

         15  context that New York City is a high cost location

         16  to live and to do business, that our rate increase

         17  of 6.5 percent is well below the national average,

         18  but the feds use that argument to say, that since

         19  you are so well below the national average, you can,

         20  in fact, increase your water rates to bring that

         21  level of consistency with other municipalities.

         22  Therefore, do not unfund nitrogen programs, do not

         23  unfund the federal mandates, simply raise the rates

         24  that you have increased somewhere else.

         25                 So, one, I am pleased that we have
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          2  been able to keep rates as low as we have, 6.5 down

          3  from what the publish rate that we had last time we

          4  were before the Council, represents that we

          5  prudently manage the capital plan in a way that

          6  allows us to take advantage of financial markets,

          7  which have been very attractive to us.  Low interest

          8  rates have allowed us to do a lot of creative

          9  financing with the Environmental Facilities Control

         10  Board.  It allows us to reissue a lot of less

         11  expensive debt, I think we all need to be very

         12  careful about long- term rate projections with

         13  potential interest rate increases, but with that, we

         14  ameliorated the increases we have seen before.  We

         15  would be hopeful that the next year process that we

         16  would see similar financial conditions, so we would

         17  be able to address the next year forecast.

         18                 Let me end on part of the public

         19  process that this hearing is really focused on, and

         20  Councilman Weprin raised it.  And by no means to

         21  diminish the Council's interest, and its concern,

         22  and its leadership on this issue, I am not sure

         23  whether or not we have really to the public's extent

         24  or the Council's extent really, fully integrated a

         25  capital plan in process within the existing
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          2  framework that we have today, which gives the need

          3  for full disclosure, which gives the need for the

          4  Council, the ability to look at what the capital

          5  plan is, and in a sense make the necessary

          6  meaningful adjustments to the capital plan when it

          7  is, in fact, adopted.

          8                 So I will go back to what I was

          9  saying before about where we were with the MTA.  And

         10  Councilman Weprin was referring to it.  The increase

         11  that we are funding, that we are proposing today, is

         12  not reflective of the future 10- year capital plan

         13  that we are proposing.  It is, as was indicated,

         14  largely an adjustment of the capital plan that it

         15  previously been presented to the Council, which is

         16  presented every year when we end up adopting the new

         17  DEP budget.  The Council gets in its entirety, the

         18  Council then has 9 months to 10 months to a year to

         19  review, because it is the next year that you really

         20  begin to see the need to discuss where the capital

         21  priority programs are.

         22                 And what we are doing this year is

         23  allowing the debate over this increase to change a

         24  process which has worked very well, which the

         25  Council has all the necessary financial tools, as
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          2  well as its regulatory oversight in approving the

          3  capital plan away to enter into this dialogue to

          4  protect the constituencies that all of you

          5  represent.  Because this is not the year that our

          6  long- term capital plan is, in fact, reflected in

          7  the rates.  It is the next year, it is the next

          8  year, it is the next year after that.  This is

          9  really, largely a financial adjustment on previously

         10  disclosed capital plan.  So, I would hate to think

         11  that in the effort to bring greater accountability,

         12  one that I think already exist with the DEP process,

         13  we begin to undermine and have the perception that

         14  we have politicized the capital plan in process and

         15  the Water Board process unnecessarily.

         16                 In sum, I do not think the capital

         17  plan and process in terms of public input disclosure

         18  is broken, and therefore, I do not think we need to

         19  fix it.  Rather, what I think we need to do

         20  collectively, between the Council and DEP, is to

         21  begin to engage in a Citywide dialogue of what

         22  should we be spending our money on, who are our

         23  partners to spend our money, and if it is necessary

         24  to go back to the federal government to say, between

         25  nitrogen and combined sewer overflow, we simply
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          2  cannot afford to spend another three to four billion

          3  dollars on that.  That is collectively where we

          4  should spend our effort.

          5                 The ability for the Council through

          6  the capital plan and process is there.  Secondarily,

          7  you have a public process through the Water Rate

          8  Board, which allows you to come, back and provide

          9  additional comment and additional input in terms of

         10  the water rates are.  So I do not believe it would

         11  be fair to characterize what we are discussing today

         12  as railroading a capital plan through the Council.

         13  I think it is one that is a reasonable balance

         14  between what you had seen before, we are proposing a

         15  10 percent increase of about what you have seen

         16  before.  And then as I have testified before the

         17  Environmental Committee, we have expanded that plan.

         18    We have expanded that plan in order to fully fund

         19  those projects, but more importantly say to New

         20  Yorkers, this is the built environment that you

         21  deserve for the next 10 years. It does not come for

         22  free, it comes at a cost, but it comes at a cost,

         23  which is moderated against the other increases

         24  within the City.

         25                 But as I end all of my testimony,
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          2  somebody, 100 years ago, 50 years ago, 70 years ago,

          3  who ran the City, made the same kind of long- term

          4  infrastructure decisions that we benefit today,

          5  water, sewer, waste water treatment, the City would

          6  not be possible without it.  And they built it for

          7  us, and for us to fail to build for the future will

          8  leave costs that will only increase later and

          9  problems that will be more difficult to end up

         10  repairing.               So on balance, I think we

         11  have disclosed to the Council what our capital plan

         12  priorities are.  We believe there is a public

         13  process, which allows the Council through its

         14  adoption process, as well as the public hearing

         15  process to bring the full input in community

         16  concerns into it.  And finally, we have created a

         17  financial infrastructure which allows the City to

         18  not suffer the consequences of not building the

         19  North River Sewage Treatment Plant, but, in fact,

         20  building through tough times, building through good

         21  times, so that at the end of the day, the City has

         22  the same system that it was built before.  But more

         23  importantly the City with the services that it

         24  needs, going forward.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

          3  Commissioner.  We have been joined by a number of my

          4  colleagues.  I am going to introduce them in the

          5  order that I saw them.  I will apologize if you came

          6  in a different order.  We have Council Member Helen

          7  Sears from Queens; Council Member and our Majority

          8  Whip, Leroy Comrie from Queens; Council Member Jose

          9  Serrano from the Bronx; Council Member Madeline

         10  Provenzano from the Bronx; Council Member Alan

         11  Jennings from Queens; our Minority Leader, Council

         12  Member Jim Oddo from Staten Island; and Council

         13  Member Margarita Lopez from Manhattan.

         14                 I am now going to turn it over to my

         15  Co- Chair, Jim Gennaro for a few questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  Commissioner, thank you for your candid and

         18  comprehensive statement.  Let me just get to one or

         19  two items before I turn it back to David and others,

         20  you know, who have a sort of sort of piercing

         21  financial insight to, and this is very important

         22  that we have them involved in this hearing as well.

         23  And I am grateful David and members of the Finance

         24  Committee for partnering with us in a very

         25  significant way on this hearing.
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          2                 You mentioned several times in your

          3  statement, the transparency of the, you know, DEP's

          4  capital budget.  But as our Finance Analyst have

          5  been trying to come to grips with this very

          6  significant and comprehensive 10- year plan, which

          7  by your own admission, it grew from $8 billion in

          8  the preliminary plan, and presumably that was a very

          9  thoughtful process that led to the original $8

         10  billion proposal.  For that to grow in a very short

         11  period of time to $16.5 billion, even though the big

         12  numbers are in the out years, as you had mentioned.

         13  Our staff tells me that they do not really have the

         14  proper details on all of the items that are part of

         15  that $16.5 billion plan.  So, we do not believe that

         16  we can do our job with maximum effectiveness,

         17  notwithstanding a detailed request, that was made,

         18  you testified in March 6th, and then early April we

         19  sent a request for much more detailed information on

         20  the $16.5 billion plan, which we have yet to really

         21  receive.

         22                 So it is difficult to, I mean, I

         23  believe DEP wants to make it transparent, but we do

         24  not really have any information that we need to do

         25  it.  And if I could just follow- up, sort of like
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          2  part two of the question, about the process by which

          3  the Water Board sets rates.  And we have pretty

          4  smart Finance Analyst on our side of the table, and

          5  as they crunch the numbers, we are only looking at

          6  what we believe is an absolute need of, you know,

          7  2.3 percent increase.  And so we will be happy to

          8  engage DEP in some sort of discussion of like, level

          9  billing, essentially, which is like the concept that

         10  is being put forward.  If we do 6.5,  and 6.5, and

         11  6.5, it relieves it from having a zero increase one-

         12  year, and then 10 percent the next year.  I mean,

         13  these are all conversations that maybe we ought to

         14  have, but they cannot be unilateral edicts on the

         15  part of the Water Board who makes decisions for the

         16  entire populace of the City of New York that we

         17  should have even a penny more of an increase in a

         18  certain year, than we actually need.

         19                 But we do not engage you in this

         20  discussion to say that, well if we do not ask for

         21  this amount, we are going to have a bottom already

         22  is going to be trouble or whatever.  But I do not

         23  think there is, you know, quite the transparency and

         24  quite the partnership that I believe there ought to

         25  be, and that David and the sort of Finance people

                                                            38

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  will follow- up on that.  And so I am trying to

          3  create a real working session between our Finance

          4  people and your Finance people so that they can have

          5  the proper discussion that they need to have and

          6  that we need to have, so that we can collectively

          7  come to some decisions on what the water rate

          8  increase ought to be.

          9                 And if it is 6.5 percent, when the

         10  new year is really only for 2.3, then it is going to

         11  take a lot of convincing on DEP's and the Water

         12  Board and the Water Finance Authority's part to get

         13  us to sort of buy into that.

         14                 So we want to start today with the

         15  process that a little more, just a little more

         16  transparent, and you know, a little more

         17  cooperative.  But this is not to say that DEP wanted

         18  to be uncooperative, but I think we have to create a

         19  new paradigm and I think today is the first new day

         20  of that paradigm.  So I will let you respond to

         21  that.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Well I guess I

         23  will respond in two ways.  I think the transparency

         24  that I have spoken of is the transparency that will

         25  allow the Council for the next year to fully analyze
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          2  everything about our capital plan as it relates to

          3  the long- term rate implications for the City, and

          4  that is the transparency that I speak about.  And I

          5  am pleased to say that that can be the start of that

          6  discussion today.

          7                 I just think that we need to be

          8  cautious about understanding that the rate increase

          9  that is proposed today is predicated on the longer

         10  term capital decisions.  And we can go back and

         11  forth on what, in fact, would you do with our

         12  surplus, what would you do with interest rate

         13  assumptions, what would you do with those other

         14  aspects that set our rates.  But that essentially

         15  the capital component has been before the Council

         16  before, and was fixed through the capital

         17  appropriation process.  Now what we are coming back

         18  to is those financial adjustments, which have

         19  occurred since that adoption of that capital plan.

         20  And we would be delighted; again, to sit down with

         21  staff and show you how we have ended up managing

         22  those.

         23                 But I think the public needs to

         24  understand that this is not within the framework of

         25  what our long- term capital does not give both the

                                                            40

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  public and the Council next a full opportunity to

          3  say we do not think you should build these projects,

          4  we do not think this is the environment that New

          5  Yorkers want, because it will be the next year

          6  process that you are beginning to finance, in a

          7  sense, what we have proposed this year.  So I do not

          8  think we should mislead people in the house here,

          9  that this increase is predicated upon what we are

         10  going to do prospectively.

         11                 This increase is an embedded capital

         12  plan with some financial adjustments related to

         13  interest payments, surplus, et cetera.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Then let me be

         15  clear.  We are doing two things here.  I mean, or

         16  DEP, and the Water Board, and the Council, we are

         17  looking to set the water rates, which we believe the

         18  appropriate time to do that is after the budget.

         19  You have a different position, and certainly those

         20  rate increases, whatever they may be are, based on a

         21  lot of pass activity, not stuff that we are doing

         22  prospectively.

         23                 But I do not think that we cannot

         24  have a serious discussion about what we are going to

         25  do prospectively, because you are setting out a

                                                            41

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  $16.5 billion capital plan, and it is our obligation

          3  to go over it in minor detail right now, not like

          4  after the capital plan gets adopted in late June.

          5                 And so, we are trying to engage you

          6  in a, you know, a constructive dialogue over, by

          7  which we can get all the details of the $16.5

          8  billion plan, beyond just sort of, you know, vague

          9  descriptions of them.  And also to get them brass

         10  facts about what the water rate increase ought to be

         11  for this year, because we just do not believe that

         12  it ought to be 6.5 percent.  And so, you know, we

         13  are just not prepared to give card blanch for either

         14  of those things.  And I think what I am looking for

         15  and what David is going to be looking for, as well,

         16  is a commitment to get the staffs together, to get

         17  the information, and a detailed commitment as to

         18  when we are going to get the real fine details of

         19  what the $16.5 billion plan in.  I mean, in real

         20  detail, beyond vague descriptions.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I am going to

         22  repeat myself, you will have, as you now have, and

         23  you will have begun to see, and staff has been

         24  preparing, you know, numerous variance report on all

         25  of this financial accountability.  And so the work
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          2  that you are asking for is a prospective work

          3  between now and next year.

          4                 The work that you are asking us to

          5  analyze in terms of rate increases for this year are

          6  predicated upon an approved capital plan and certain

          7  financial assumptions, which we can do as well.

          8                 But I would not want to leave either

          9  you or the public with the assumption that in not

         10  fully analyzing the $16.5 today, you would not have

         11  the basis for understanding the capital commitment

         12  plan before and the 6.5 increase that we are

         13  proposing this year.  But again, what I am saying is

         14  the Department will be delighted to sit down with

         15  the Council to go over in minute detail the $16.5

         16  going forward, and in addition, we will discuss what

         17  are the financial assumptions which drive this

         18  year's increase.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, because I

         20  will just inform you that there are a lot of people

         21  on this side of the table that feel uncomfortable

         22  after having been advised by our Finance staff that

         23  we do not need 6.5.  We are locked into proceed down

         24  to either track, the 6.5 or the $16.5 billion plan

         25  without more detailed information.
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          2                 So I think we are just trying, you

          3  know, break that open a little bit, and we would

          4  urge the Water Board and Water Finance Authority not

          5  to take this step to set rates on May 5th, when

          6  there are still a lot of, when it is not clear from

          7  our side of the table that this is an increase which

          8  is necessary.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And with that,

         11  I will turn it over to Council Member Weprin.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Yes, I just want

         13  to follow- up on the theme that, I do not mean to

         14  double hit you here, but just to follow- up with

         15  what Council Member Gennaro said, take into

         16  consideration some of your comments.

         17                 It is precisely for the reason that

         18  we have had these other increases to our

         19  constituents, particularly the 18.5 property tax,

         20  the MTA fare, which is going up, and all these

         21  other, you know, taxes are coming up.  It is

         22  precisely the reason that we are very concerned

         23  about taking a preemptive strike on increasing the

         24  rates more than we have to this particular year.

         25  Because it is a very tough fiscal time.  We are
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          2  talking about cutbacks across the board; we are

          3  talking about the 18.5 percent property tax on top

          4  of tax, really what people consider a much larger

          5  tax because of increased assessments.  As you know,

          6  with the real property going up, so in some cases

          7  you are talking about increase of 25 percent, 30

          8  percent over what people thought they should have

          9  been.  Plus what is going on with the MTA, plus

         10  these other things.

         11                 It is the reason we really urge, and

         12  we want to do this, you know, we do not want to do

         13  this in a confrontational situation, but we do have,

         14  you know, our numbers, we would really like to share

         15  with you.  Our staff feels very strongly that a more

         16  reasonable increase for this current cycle would be

         17  2.3 percent rather than 6.5 percent, which would

         18  still allow for a $90 million surplus.  We do

         19  respect what you said about the AA Bond rating, and

         20  the need for having surpluses, and we agree with

         21  that.  But we have done our own numbers, and we will

         22  share with you at your leisure, but we really would

         23  like you to seriously consider our numbers, because

         24  even though it may just be delaying the inevitable,

         25  it is really very important to our constituents not
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          2  to be pounded with increase over increase, even if

          3  it means it can put it off for another year.

          4  Because you know, we have a number of senior

          5  citizens and other people on fixed incomes, and

          6  really, every dollar, really makes a difference on a

          7  monthly basis.  And really, you know, we would like,

          8  we really urge you to try to keep that 6.5 percent

          9  closer to the 3.2 percent that we are recommending.

         10                 Let me turn it over to some of our

         11  colleagues.  We have a number of colleagues that

         12  have questions to ask.  So, I think the first one is

         13  Council Member Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you,

         15  both Chairs, and I apologize, I have another hearing

         16  across the street, so I am going to have to leave.

         17  But let me just briefly say that I read the

         18  preparation by the staff, which recommends a 2.3

         19  percent increase, and what Councilman Weprin said

         20  directly, and Chair Gennaro said somewhat indirectly

         21  I want a second.  And I just saw this morning on the

         22  local news that the Mayor's rating, that 65 percent

         23  of the people polled, and I do not know how accurate

         24  the poll is, but it is 65 percent said that the

         25  Mayor is handling the fiscal crisis of the City
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          2  terribly, about 2 percent said that they are

          3  handling it very well.

          4                 What we are hearing here is that

          5  there is not enough, in my view, sensitivity, and I

          6  noticed that today, later someone is testifying from

          7  the Rent Stabilization Association, water rates go

          8  to landlords, which means increases for tenants that

          9  are facing already increases, talk about double

         10  digit rent increases.  It is going to cause

         11  virtually a revolution among my constituents and

         12  others.

         13                 And for you to do anything more than

         14  the bare minimum in this climate, after an 18.5

         15  percent increase in real estate taxes, and a huge

         16  increase in insurance costs, for you to do anymore

         17  than the bare minimum, the bare minimum,

         18  understanding the future, and we could talk about

         19  some projects that I think might be eliminated, but

         20  forget that for the moment.  For you to do more than

         21  the bare minimum at this time, will really create an

         22  atmosphere of tremendous anger among the tenants.

         23  But more, I should put it first, among the

         24  homeowners and then the tenants. And you have to go

         25  back, and if these numbers are right, because of
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          2  lower financing costs, and we know that interest

          3  rates are at a historical low.  I am refinancing my

          4  house for the second time to take advantage of

          5  historic low interest rates.  You must be saving

          6  money now; if you are not, you are doing something

          7  wrong.  And that saving should be passed on in terms

          8  of lower water rates.

          9                 You cannot do 6.5 percent, unless it

         10  is absolutely, absolutely necessary, and I do not

         11  see that.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Did you want to

         14  respond to Council Member Koppell.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I think I have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Council

         17  Member Brewer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

         19  Chris, I am not as well versed as some of my

         20  colleagues in this.  But my question is, we have

         21  heard a lot about reserved funds and surpluses in

         22  terms of some of the discussions of the MTA Board.

         23                 Now what is the reserve fund?  It

         24  looks like there is a doubling in it in your

         25  projection, but I could be wrong.  And how much
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          2  surplus is included in your number?  And then, just

          3  picking up on what Oliver suggested, is what is the

          4  number?  I know we said we are going to be

          5  continuing in discussing it in terms of rate

          6  increases.  I am obviously missing something, but

          7  first the question of the reserve and the surplus.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Give me a second.

          9    Thank you, Councilwoman Brewer.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Gale is fine.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Gale.  I will

         12  just do the numbers, and then we can sort of go back

         13  and discuss it.

         14                 The FY 2003 carry forward is $159

         15  million.  Next year, 2004, actually, we will spend

         16  down from that, we will actually reduce the amount

         17  of surplus.  And right now, the Water Board is

         18  showing 1- 0- 1- 8, and the change then is about $57

         19  million in terms of that decrease.

         20                 And it is a function of what is the

         21  best level of surplus to moderate interest rate

         22  increases potentially due to rating board changes as

         23  it relates to our debt.  They do not like to see us

         24  at a debt level, whether that is 90, as Councilman

         25  Weprin had said earlier, the difference between 101
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          2  and 90 is not going to drive, you know, a rate

          3  decrease to the levels that people have been

          4  representing before.  We think we have been managing

          5  interest rate changes, and as I said, we can show

          6  you the schedule of how we have defeased (sic) bonds

          7  and we have used the Environmental Facility Control

          8  mechanism to reduce costs.  And that we are not

          9  carrying an overly excessive surplus on which

         10  burdens ratepayers. We think it is an amount, which

         11  balances those two key priorities.

         12                 And then with the follow- up on the

         13  second part of your question.  Next year we are

         14  showing, and I know this is difficult to bring up at

         15  this time, we are showing a rate increase of 9.4

         16  percent.  Last year we had shown a rate increase of

         17  upwards of 8 percent.

         18                 The problem is that this is an

         19  enormous system that requires, notwithstanding the

         20  creativity of longer term water supply projects,

         21  whether it is the Kensico Aqueduct, whether it is

         22  the filtration avoidance determination, it is a

         23  water and supply system which at a minimum is

         24  driving $300 plus million a year in just maintenance

         25  and upgrade.  As I had said earlier in my testimony,
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          2  $700 million worth of just dam, bridge

          3  infrastructure improvements, $250 million worth of

          4  utility relocation costs.  So if you look at what we

          5  are building, we are not building some new, you

          6  know, Taj Mahal of the DEP agenda.  We are

          7  fundamentally building the water and supply and

          8  sewer system so that it meets the minimum standards

          9  that they are today.

         10                 So when Councilman Koppell says you

         11  must do the absolute minimum, I would argue that

         12  when we had discussed a $25 billion plan, we have

         13  now worked this down to what we think is a

         14  reasonable and responsible minimum.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay, well, we

         16  would just urge the follow- up that we set a date

         17  before we adjourn here today, where at least your

         18  staff can sit down with our staff - -

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: - -  and kind of

         21  go over some of these numbers.  Because some of

         22  these numbers were compiled in the last day and two,

         23   - -

         24                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Very good.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: - -  and so we
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          2  have not shared with you.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Fine.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  So we want to

          5  work in a spirit of cooperation to try to help our

          6  constituents at the same time.

          7                 I just have an announcement to make

          8  before we proceed.  The Land Use Subcommittee on

          9  Landmarks, Public Siting, and Maritime Uses, which

         10  is scheduled for eleven o'clock today, has been

         11  moved to 250 Broadway on the 16th Floor, across the

         12  street. So if anybody is interested in attending

         13  that Subcommittee, it is across the street, 250

         14  Broadway, 16th Floor.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I have got to go.

         16    I really want to go to that hearing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Soon, soon.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Ah, come on,

         19  let's all go.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Not until you

         21  hear from Council Member Lopez.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Ah, come on.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I have a

         24  couple of questions. Can you give me some idea,

         25  according to the documentation we have here, the
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          2  Newtown Creek Water Pollution Control Plant No. 3, I

          3  am interested on that issue.  And I know that this

          4  is a big project that have many, you know,

          5  consequences.  What is the final cost of that total

          6  project?

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Well since I have

          8  affirmed under oath, I guess, I will say that I will

          9  give you what we are currently projecting to be that

         10  final number.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I understand

         12  that.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Any Commissioner

         14  who has testified on the cost of Newtown Creek will

         15  find out what they said and what it finally was.  We

         16  would expect Newtown Creek to cost approximately

         17  $2.4 billion by the time - -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Five?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Two point four.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Two point

         21  four.  We have a number for $400 billion.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Four hundred

         23  million.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Can somebody

         25  clarify that for me?  Over a 10- year period, that
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          2  is the increase.  Then did you include the increase

          3  in there?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Just to be clear,

          5  Joe Singleton, the Assistant Commissioner for Budget

          6  is here.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

          8  What Council staff has given you, it is giving you

          9  the $400 million incremental increase over and above

         10  the previously disclosed Newtown Creek number.  So

         11  we have as I somewhat led hesitatingly, we have seen

         12  cost of Newtown Creek go up, and the increment that

         13  you are referring to is $400 million.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then from that

         15  amount of money, I just learned a week ago, that in

         16  my district you are planning to expand the plan that

         17  is located on Avenue D and 13th Street from pumping

         18  300, I do not know what the 300 is, to a 700. I do

         19  not know if it is gallons?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay, then

         22  from pumping 300 gallons to pumping 700 gallons,

         23  what is the portion of amount that is gong to be

         24  spent on this particular capital project that you

         25  have in place to expand that facility on Avenue
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          2  Diagnosis?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure, I am going

          4  to have to dig that one up.  Unfortunately, I do not

          5  have that exact number, but we will be glad to get

          6  back to you with it for you today.  It is probably,

          7  it is embedded in the Newtown Creek number that I

          8  just gave you, and it is reflective, the increase of

          9  gallonages is reflective of the, you know, wet

         10  weather flow that we are having to handle to

         11  eliminate discharge out into the East River.  But I

         12  will get you the exact number.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I would

         14  appreciate that now.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Tell me, what

         17  is the environmental impact in terms of the new fuel

         18  that you are going to be burning in there?  It is my

         19  understanding that this is diesel fuel that you are

         20  going to be burning in there, in order to increase

         21  from 300 to 700, what is the environmental impact in

         22  my community in regard to this?

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Okay, let me just

         24  be clear that the wastewater pumping facility is a

         25  very low- end technological, you know, mechanism.
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          2  And that we are with 300 million gallons going to

          3  700 million gallons, we are driving a very small

          4  pumping capacity to take that to a sewage treatment

          5  facility.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I understand

          7  that.  But what I want to understand is --

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I will have to

          9  get you the emissions increase, and I am not even

         10  sure that they are, in all likelihood, they are

         11  deminumus (phonetic) over the environmental diesel

         12  emissions that there was before.  But I will get you

         13  what those diesel emissions are.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay.  Then I

         15  want to bring this to the Committee Chair of

         16  Environmental and the Finance in the following

         17  context.  I want the Council and the Committee

         18  Chairs to know that this Councilwoman never received

         19  a single notification from this Department in regard

         20  of the preparation and expansion of this plant.

         21                 The reason I learned about this, was

         22  to a memo that I acquired from the Community Board

         23  #3.  This Council member was never addressed,

         24  reached out to, or told anything about this proposed

         25  implementation of services in that particular plant,
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          2  expanding of that plant.  I have never had no

          3  discussion.

          4                 And I am bringing this to the

          5  Committee for the following reason.  What is the

          6  procedure that the Department use to notify the

          7  Council members, do we have a procedure?  Is there

          8  any obligation of the Department to let know the

          9  Councilmanic District where these things are going

         10  to happen?  What is the procedure that is in place

         11  currently?  And that is something that both

         12  Committees should allow us to understand this

         13  process.

         14                 Because as I understand right now,

         15  there is nothing in place.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Yes, I do not

         17  think there is anything in place, but I would think

         18  that it would be something that the Environmental

         19  Protection Agency should do as a matter of courtesy

         20  to the individual member's district.  Don't you

         21  think, Commissioner?

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I do think as a

         23  matter of courtesy that that is something that we

         24  should do.  And I believe, and I will have to go

         25  back and confirm with staff, that within the
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          2  Community Board process over, it must now be almost,

          3  it was before I got there, but it must be almost a

          4  year and a half ago, or maybe slightly less we had

          5  begun - -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  I blame my

          7  predecessor all the time, so.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I am not blaming,

          9  but I think, and I will check the record, but I

         10  think we have been down to the Community Board

         11  discussing over a year ago this potential plant

         12  upgrade.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That is

         14  precisely what I point out to you.  I point out to

         15  you that I acquired the information through the

         16  Community Board #3.  And that is precisely my

         17  questioning.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Oh, I am sorry.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:   The Council

         20  member who sits in the particular district where you

         21  have all of these projects.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  In my opinion,

         24  should we notify that this issue is going to go

         25  forward in the district where they are?  In the
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          2  particular case of my community, I do not want to

          3  derail the hearing into any other area.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.

          5  COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  But using my particular

          6  community as an example, particulates are going to

          7  be put in the air, increasing the pollution in my

          8  district in regard to diesel fuel.  Not only

          9  particles are going to increase in my district, we

         10  are talking about a plant that is next Con Edison.

         11  And I think that just for that reason, alone, the

         12  Council member of that particular district should

         13  have notification from the Board and that

         14  conversation should occur between the Board and the

         15  Council members.

         16                 When this issue pertains exclusively

         17  to the City.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Council Member

         19  Lopez, listen for a minute, I will go back and check

         20  the record, and perhaps the timing and sequence of

         21  notification in some way was simultaneous for both

         22  your office and the Community Board.  If what you

         23  are saying is prior to Community Board notification,

         24  that we should let the Council know when a project

         25  like this is going forth, that is something we will

                                                            59

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  take a look at, because I see your point.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I am saying to

          4  you that I never received notification, that is what

          5  I am saying to you.  I received a notification

          6  through my participation in Community Board #3.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Okay.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That is what I

          9  am informing you.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  I think the

         12  Commissioner recognizes that if that happened that

         13  it was an oversight, and I assume it will be

         14  corrected.

         15                 Council Member Sears.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman. Thank you, Commissioner.

         18                 My question does not really have to

         19  be answered now because I gather that you are all

         20  going to meet and to work out some of the things.

         21  But in looking at the numbers, the 6.5 as opposed to

         22  the 2.3, I do not see where you indicate that you

         23  have had some savings.  And with recognizing the

         24  sensitivity of governmental responsibility to really

         25  work at and improve and maintain a water system that
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          2  is of quality and is necessary, and we are mandated

          3  to do that.  But at the same time, when we have

          4  these increases, and I do not see your capital

          5  projects here, I know they are someplace apart, but

          6  the 6.5 does not indicate that any savings that you

          7  have had.  And if you haven't, why haven't you had

          8  any savings?

          9                 And I realize that you are to

         10  expedite your departure, I do not need that answer

         11  now, but if that is something that you could

         12  basically address, because it does not indicate any

         13  savings.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WARD: That is a good

         15  question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And if you do

         17  not have them, why don't you have them?  Mr.

         18  Chairman, would you see that that is part of the

         19  information that is given to you?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  In terms of

         22  the meetings, because I think that is very important

         23  for us to have that.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  We agree.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  We will just look

          3  at that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay, Council

          5  Member Nelson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

          7  Commissioner Ward.  So is the goal, the target

          8  amount about 100 million to be raised with the 6.5

          9  percent increase?  Because if you are saying it is

         10  about 15 million per 1 percent - -

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Yes, it is about.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  It is about, yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, just to

         15  get an idea. Well could you describe the process by

         16  which New York City customers are able to challenge

         17  the water and wastewater bills now?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Actually, no, I

         19  could not.  I will have to ask somebody who can do

         20  that.  Bill, do you want to come up?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  This is Bill

         23  Kusterbeck.  Why don't you give your title?

         24                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  Good morning,

         25  Council members.  My name is William Kusterbeck, and
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          2  I am the Treasurer of the Water Board.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  You have to be

          4  sworn in.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If I could just

          6  interrupt, the Commissioner makes a good process

          7  point here.  We swear in all our witnesses, and he

          8  wants to make sure you go through the same ritual

          9  that we all do.  I am sure that you want to do no

         10  less.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  It is the

         12  standard, not ritual.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Same standard.

         14                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

         15  that you are about to give, do you swear or affirm

         16  to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         17  the truth?

         18                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  I do, so help me

         19  God.

         20                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  In connection with

         22   --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  He one up'd

         24  you.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Actually,
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          2  theologically speaking, I am not sure he did one up

          3  me.  I think he found another frame of faith and

          4  reference to make the same affirmation.

          5                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  I do not mind saying

          6  God under the Pledge of Allegiance either.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  God bless you.

          8                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  In connection with

          9  challenging the water and sewer bill, filing a

         10  complaint, if you will, there is a multi- tiered

         11  process.  The first relief, if you will, the first

         12  place to file a complaint would be with a

         13  representative of the Bureau, either our telephone

         14  number, our complaint center, customer service

         15  representative, and try and get a determination at

         16  that level from 595- 7000, customer complaint line.

         17                 After that, if you are not happy with

         18  that decision then you can appeal that to the Deputy

         19  Commissioner of the Bureau of Customer Services in

         20  the Department of Environmental Protection. And if

         21  you are not happy with that determination, you can

         22  then have a final appeal to the Executive Director

         23  of the Water Board.  At which case, after that

         24  determination is made that would be the final

         25  administrative determination?
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          2                 So, it is three tiers.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And that

          4  period of time, is it state with an SOP, with a

          5  mandated, or it is cutoff?

          6                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  Right now the rule

          7  is we, when we do complaints, if they are filed

          8  within four years of the date of the bill.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  Was it

         10  once six years, prior to 1999?  Oh, I am sorry,

         11  apples and oranges.  As far as the amount of time to

         12  challenge, well what is considered an incorrect

         13  water bill.  It was before 1999, I believe it was

         14  six years on that.

         15                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  No, it was not,

         16  Councilman.  It was prior to 2000, or June of 1999,

         17  Fiscal 2000, there was no explicit rule either in

         18  the Department of Regulations or Water Board

         19  regulations that said how long a customer had to

         20  file a complaint about a bill.  The practice in the

         21  Bureau was uneven.  Some complaints were allowed,

         22  going back in time, upwards of six years. Some

         23  adjustments were only made prospectively going

         24  forward, and there was no retroactive adjustment

         25  made.

                                                            65

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  There was no

          3  codified statute of limitations then.

          4                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  Well the statute of

          5  limitations in terms of the law, there was, but not

          6  as an administrative review matter.

          7                 In June of 1999, or just prior to

          8  Fiscal 2000, in May, April, May of 1999, it was

          9  decided that we needed to specify a precise

         10  complaint- filing period.  DEP and the Board then

         11  looked at other Municipal water systems in New York

         12  State, and found that the practice for the municipal

         13  water systems, most commonly we found two- year

         14  complaint filing period.  We found some six months,

         15  some two years, some four years, some six years.

         16  But the municipal water systems are a publicly owned

         17  municipal water systems in New York State.  Two

         18  years was a common complaint- filing period.  So the

         19  board then, in that time period took public notice

         20  on, first notice in an 18- month period, which

         21  subsequently upon adoption became a two- year

         22  period, which then was addressed by the State

         23  Legislature in 2000.  The process was there was,

         24  first, the Legislature passed a six- year bill,

         25  which the Governor vetoed.  And then the second
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          2  year, there was a four- year bill that became law,

          3  and that was in 2001, October of 2001, and that is

          4  where we are now.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I will try to

          6  wrap it.  Do you know how long it takes within

          7  limitation?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Mike, if I

          9  could, could I just jump in on this for a second?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Sure, Jim, go

         11  ahead.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:   Okay, I am

         13  sorry if I missed part of your answer.  But I

         14  believe after the Water Board made the adjustment,

         15  to go to two years, the State Legislature, you said,

         16  spoke to the issue - -

         17                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: - -  in which

         19  they created a six- year time frame, correct?

         20                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  The first bill

         21  passed by the Legislature was vetoed by the

         22  Governor.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         24                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  And then the next

         25  year -              CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But then
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          2  it was a four- year, so it was four.

          3                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  The next year - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And then a

          5  month later the Water Board took it back to two

          6  years.  Is that the right chronology?

          7                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  Well the next year,

          8  the State Legislature passed a six- year bill, which

          9  I am not sure whether that became law or not, but

         10  one month later - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It did become

         12  law.

         13                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  For one month.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  For one month.

         15                 MR. KUSTERBECK:  And then the

         16  Governor forced a compromise on a four- year law.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, I just

         18  want to set the right chronology, and just for the

         19  record, the people should know that Resolution 794

         20  is on the agenda for which we have many sponsors

         21  here at the Council for where we are calling a six-

         22  year, a six- year, you know, back billing challenge

         23  period for customers.

         24                 And so, your questions, - -

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: - -  Council

          3  Member Nelson are - -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: - -  welcomed

          6  because they touch on an issue, which is on the

          7  agenda today.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Right, that

          9  is where I was going towards actually, and I will

         10  wrap up with, I believe gas, electric, telephone,

         11  the utilities allow at least six years, is that

         12  right, Chairman Gennaro?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It is our

         14  understanding that regulated utilities by the PSC

         15  allow for a six- year challenge period.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Because rule

         17  of thumb is like how could somebody not get it, and

         18  not see that there is a mistake, after, you know, a

         19  lot of years.  I have seen some people in my

         20  constituency that reasonably they did not know that

         21  the bill was going somewhere else, or whatever.

         22  They were going through a pre- Alzheimers, and there

         23  are a lot of reasonable reasons why, that hence, we

         24  will be hearing about a resolution.

         25                 Thank you, if you have any response
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          2  to that, that is fine.  And I thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Council Member

          4  Jennings.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Commissioner Ward.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Good morning.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I would

          9  again I would like to thank you for joining us here,

         10  and again commend your agency for all the fine work

         11  it does particularly in my district.

         12                 COMMISSION WARD:  Thank you.

         13                 COMMISSIONER JENNINGS:  I am

         14  extremely happy and pleased with your services and

         15  so is my constituents are.  I know there was a

         16  question here with concern challenging of the water

         17  bills.  I know we have had an instance we had

         18  constituent with a $3,000 water bill, and today her

         19  bill is reduced to $290, so I want to thank you

         20  again for the fine work that your agency has done,

         21  and helping to make people feel that government is

         22  on their side sometimes.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Great.  Thank you

         24  I appreciate it.  We have a very extensive billing

         25  outreach program that goes out into communities
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          2  whether it's communities centers, churches,

          3  synagogues, where we, literally, go to the community

          4  with billing records to resolve just these sorts of

          5  issues, so thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Now

          7  Commissioner, you are under oath, are you receiving

          8  hazard pay for being here?  Okay, that is a joke.

          9                 Listen, looking at the, - -  I don't

         10  know, do you see the sheet here that I have?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  No.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  The Counsel

         13  we have - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  We are going to

         15  share it with the Commissioner and his staff right

         16  after the meeting.  Do you want to take a look at it

         17  now?

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure, thanks.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  He needs to

         20  take a second just to brief it for a minute, all

         21  right.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Can't really

         23  follow this, could you just give us a sec.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Sure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  All right, in
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          2  the interest of time, we will share all our data

          3  with you, and we would like to set a date before we

          4  leave to sit down.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Excuse me,

          6  Mr. Chair, I did not know that he did not have it

          7  before, I didn't know if it was a confidential item.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  No, it is not a

          9  question of that, we have been complying some of

         10  these numbers in response to their numbers.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  So why don't we

         13   - -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  There was a

         15  relevance to me asking, showing him that document.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Sure, go ahead.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Because I

         18  want to see, based on the numbers that you have for

         19  debt services, for example, 2004, and the Council's

         20  projection, if those numbers, you think that this

         21  analysis, this here, does that sound correct, or do

         22  you feel it is erroneous, or, I don't know, how do

         23  you feel about these numbers that are gathered here

         24  for us, versus the numbers that you have?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Council member,

                                                            72

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  we are going to, we agreed to sit down, we are going

          3  to have a meeting in the next week or so.  We will

          4  try to set down a meeting between the staff to go

          5  over some of these numbers, because there is some

          6  discrepancy on their information and - -

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I just want

          8  to zero in on the debt service, because - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Well, we went

         10  through some of this before during the testimony,

         11  you know, before.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I know.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I am asking

         15  questions of the Commissioner.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay, but the

         17  hour is getting late, though.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Because in

         19  here there is a clear, there was a discrepancy in

         20  2004 about $27.5 million.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Right, right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And I just

         23  want to get your technical opinion on this

         24  difference.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Since I, I
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          2  appreciate the question.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If I could,

          4  Commissioner, Council Member Jennings, we already

          5  have a process set out by which this and many other

          6  myriad technical questions regarding numbers that

          7  are going to be gone over, you know, by the

          8  respective staffs. And in the interest of time, we

          9  think that is the appropriate time for that to take

         10  place.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Let me just say

         12  that I think that in looking at, and this goes back

         13  to my testimony at the beginning, and looking at one

         14  of the things that are most driving the rate

         15  increase this year, understanding debt service,

         16  refinancing, and resolving the financial differences

         17  that we have will be critical, because this becomes

         18  one of the things that the Department has done an

         19  excellent job of, is in managing our debt service to

         20  reduce it to a level, which is financially

         21  responsible, but at the same time is really taking

         22  care of it.

         23                 So, Councilman, I cannot speak

         24  specifically to the $27.5 million in terms of the

         25  discrepancy.  But I do think one of the things that
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          2  the Department has, you know, demonstrated is, debt

          3  service management, is the way that we have

          4  ameliorated increases, historically, and it is a way

          5  that we are ameliorating this year, as well.  And I

          6  would hate to think that in the long run we end up

          7  making financial protections on potential death

          8  service changes that we do not, yet, know about, and

          9  that we end up saying that could be this rate, when

         10  we are never sure.  And it is better to nail it down

         11  and know exactly what that amount is.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Earlier

         13  testimony you stated that possibly you currently

         14  recommend a 6.5 percent increase, and you said that

         15  next year you are looking at possibly a 9 percent.

         16  Is that correct?

         17                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  That is correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And why is

         19  it that you feel that you may end up, what is the

         20  cause of that projection, possible projection?

         21                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Well, I mean,

         22  this is what, again, I was trying to get across.  We

         23  are embarking on a larger capital plan, which next

         24  year begins to hit our financing capacity, and we

         25  conservatively, when we publish our potential rates,
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          2  we conservatively estimate what that financial

          3  requirement would be for rate increases.

          4                 So, for example, the last forecast

          5  for this year's increase was upwards of 8 percent.

          6  We only came in at 6.5, which is a function of our

          7  financial management of our debt and the like. So,

          8  this is the thing that I would hope that the Council

          9  would be a partner with on terms of understanding

         10  what our long- term capital agenda is, and what is

         11  driving these rate increases, because it is

         12  interesting and it goes back to Councilwoman Lopez's

         13  question. That what we are paying for is changing

         14  New York City's environment to make it better, and

         15  it needs to be a collective discussion of what we do

         16  not want to spend our money on, or what we do not

         17  think is necessary for the capital plan.

         18                 So this next year, after we finalize

         19  with the Council what our 10- year capital plan will

         20  be, the most fruitful debate will be the one that is

         21  occurring next year from today.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And going

         23  back to this 6.5 percent increase, as you know, the

         24  Council here is urging for there to be a 2.3

         25  percent.  Do you see any possibility that if it is
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          2  not as low as 2.3, if there is any way to compromise

          3  in between those numbers?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I am, obviously,

          5  going to say that if we can manage water rates below

          6  of what we forecast, we would like to see how you

          7  could prudently do that.  And that is why we made a

          8  comment to sit down with the staff, to really go

          9  through those numbers.  At the end of the day, there

         10  is a fiduciary responsibility of the Water Board in

         11  order to maintain the capital plan in order

         12  sufficient to deliver the water supply and the

         13  wastewater sewage treatment.  There is a

         14  certification necessary to say that this is

         15  sufficient.

         16                 But, obviously, we would be glad to

         17  sit down with the Council and see what other ideas

         18  that they may have.  For the same way that we have a

         19  public hearing where people can comment on other

         20  ideas, and as Councilman Koppell has spoken about

         21  there are ways that people could say do not spend

         22  money on this project.  So, that is part of the

         23  process, and if it is less, it is less.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And what is

         25  the projected date for the increase on the 6.5?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  May 5th.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Commissioner, on

          4  that subject, just as a follow- up, is it possible

          5  to postpone that date for say a month to give us

          6  time?  May 5th is next week, that is next Monday, I

          7  believe, it is possible to postpone it for a month

          8  say, while the staffs meet and analyze some of these

          9  numbers, and at the same time it will give us a

         10  chance to have adopted our budget and know what we

         11  are getting from revenue from other sources, from

         12  Albany, from Washington, which might, somehow,

         13  peripherally enter into the overall discussion as

         14  well?

         15                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I really would

         16  rather not make that commitment.  Rather what I

         17  would prefer to do, is to have staff work intensely

         18  through these numbers.  As I said, I think in terms

         19  of guidance, it is not the 16- year plan that we

         20  need to really understand and evaluate now.  Rather

         21  it is what was the previous plan capital base, and

         22  where are we today financially, and what were those

         23  distinctions.

         24                 There were also, if we were to delay

         25  this, there are significant financial implications
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          2  in terms of our collection and our frontage rate,

          3  which could have rate implications as well.

          4                 So, I think we have time, if we sit

          5  down with staff to go over those changes, because it

          6  is not about, it is not about the 10- year, it is

          7  about what were the financial assumptions built on

          8  top of the earlier capital plan that the Council had

          9  already approved.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Well I would

         11  still urge, if we cannot iron that out in the next

         12  week and so to, at least, put it off a couple of

         13  weeks, if possible.  And if we could, before we

         14  leave here today, if we could set a date for the

         15  staff to meet, so we can try to see if we could get

         16  together, you know, and then --

         17                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure, we will set

         18  a date before we leave.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:

         21  Commissioner, what is the increase or the 6.5, that

         22  is going to be on the usage of water coming out of

         23  the pipe, or the increase also applies to sewage?

         24  Because I know you have, because there are two

         25  charges to your water bill, so where are those

                                                            79

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  charges that are being laid at?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Council member,

          4  it is an across the board increase.  It is 6.5

          5  percent on both the water rate and the sewer rate.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So each

          7  part of the bill is going to get a 6.5 increase.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  And the impact,

          9  as shown in the pubic information documents, is

         10  about $30 per year, for a single family customer,

         11  for both combined water and sewer charges.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So, the

         13  good part is, unlike the property tax increase, a

         14  customer can control how much water they use to have

         15  such an impact on their bill.  But you know, they

         16  will tell you, Mr. Commissioner, - -

         17                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Actually, if I

         18  could, follow- up, one of the things that we have

         19  proposed this year, and there has been some

         20  concerned expressed about it, we are proposing an

         21  adjustment to the minimum charge, it is historically

         22  the case that seniors and other rate block users who

         23  are just simply using the minimum amount of water,

         24  we have proposed reducing that.  Not on an age base,

         25  but on a minimum base usage, which allows people to
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          2  really control how much they are paying for water,

          3  and we have proposed that to the Water Board, and we

          4  are interested to hear, to see some people see that

          5  now is not the time to be reducing costs, other

          6  people see it exactly as you did Councilman, as a

          7  way to ameliorate and have people, whether it is

          8  people over 65 or other households, which are able

          9  to keep their usage to the absolute minimum.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Very good.

         11  This last statement, Mr. Commissioner, as you know,

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Council Member

         13  Jennings, we have many, many other witnesses, many

         14  other witnesses.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  My final

         16  statement, I will wrap it up.  As you know, we had

         17  an 18.5 percent property tax increase.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The

         19  Commissioner is aware of that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Which I

         21  voted against, and I was expelled from the Finance

         22  Committee, so good luck.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         24  Council Member Jennings for your insights.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  If I get
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          2  expelled, I guess I will just have to live with the

          3  rejection.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.  With

          5  respect to the 15 percent decrease in the minimum

          6  charge, I think many of us on this side of the table

          7  would view that the minimum charge is essentially,

          8  you know, people are paying for something that they

          9  are not actually receiving, so any decrease in the

         10  minimum charge we are grateful for that.  I know

         11  that there was correspondence from you to Borough

         12  President Marshall last August in which you through

         13  out a number, you were thinking about maybe 25

         14  percent, but you wanted to do something in the

         15  upcoming rate making year, and 15 percent appears to

         16  be the number.  And do we have some level of

         17  confidence from the Water Board, would that be an

         18  unacceptable figure for them?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  I would not want

         20  to speak for the Board, but I think given the

         21  testimony and the response of some of the

         22  Commissioners, they recognize it.  I would not want

         23  to say what the final figure be.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Let me just

         25  follow- up and say that, does DEP's, you know,
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          2  current budget proposal reflect that 15 percent

          3  reduction, was that put in the numbers?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So that was, so

          6  all the numbers are out there in the Exec Budget

          7  reflect the 50 decrease in the new charge.

          8                 You made reference earlier in your

          9  statement, Commissioner, to federal, you know,

         10  federal mandates with respect to, you know, nitrogen

         11  removal, and something that I think may come out of,

         12  you know, a closer working relationship between our

         13  staff and your staff would be us helping you go to

         14  the federal government, because there are, perhaps,

         15  federal monies that might be available for some of

         16  the federal mandates that other cities may be

         17  getting, that we may be, you know, not pursuing.

         18  And you know, to the extent that we are not pursuing

         19  the federal government for monies for the city, and

         20  there is, well, we may be able to,  I guess I am

         21  asking two things. Are you supremely confident that

         22  every single ask that can be reasonably made of the

         23  federal government is being asked and followed up

         24  on, and, you know, to what extent we may be able to

         25  partner with you in these asks, perhaps we can be
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          2  more effective or drive the point home to the feds.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Well, obviously,

          4  the Administration and DEP would welcome any

          5  additional support as it relates to federal monies.

          6  I need to be candid and let you know that given

          7  historically New York City's self- sufficiency and

          8  taking care of our own house, much like we have done

          9  with health care, getting back into the cue for

         10  federal monies, when you have never received it

         11  before, becomes difficult.

         12                 Unfunded mandates, however, are

         13  something that I think all municipalities are

         14  struggling with, if the federal government is going

         15  to set a standard for wastewater, for example, it

         16  should be prepared to fund them.  I think it is

         17  interesting, County Executive Spano, recently sent a

         18  letter as it relates to nitrogen, and the nitrogen

         19  impact for the County of Westchester, and he

         20  indicated that absent, some form of state or federal

         21  funding, the nitrogen program in Westchester County

         22  would require water and sewer rates to increase 330

         23  percent.  So, the infrastructure gap within New York

         24  or within the United States for wastewater, water

         25  supply, et cetera, is huge.  All the support we can
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          2  get, and we are pressing Washington for it, is well

          3  appreciated.  I am not sure, unlike the City's

          4  budget that it presents an opportunity to really

          5  reduce water rates given the historic lack of

          6  funding by the feds on our system.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But it would be

          8  hard for us to abide a situation whereby we are

          9  being penalized for our self sufficiency, in that,

         10  you know - -

         11  COMMISSIONER WARD:  Yes, the idea that we end up

         12  paying fines to the federal government for non-

         13  compliance when they have made a mandate, and heaven

         14  help fund it is - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, I mean

         16  anything that we can do from our end, you know to

         17  get to some of this money, we would be happy to.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WARD: That would be

         19  great.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And during the

         21  staff sessions, which will follow this hearing, we

         22  will be grateful for an update on your federal

         23  government outreach activities and how we, at the

         24  Council, may be able to assist in those.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  You should know
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          2  that in Washington there is a push to create,

          3  similar to the transportation agenda that was done

          4  by then Bud Schuster from Pennsylvania to take an

          5  off- budget for water supply and wastewater

          6  treatment, and create that as an off- budget item.

          7  The unfortunate think is the transportation agenda

          8  had an earlier funding stream that was then

          9  capitalized.  There is no funding stream in the

         10  federal appropriations for wastewater or water

         11  supply.  But there are initiatives like that in

         12  Washington.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         14  thank you.  I also like to recognize Council Member

         15  De Blasio who has been here for a while.  We have

         16  been, I do not know that he has been recognized as

         17  yet, but it is always great to have him here, a

         18  member of the EP Committee.

         19                 And once again, I would like to

         20  reinforce Chairman's Weprin's point about the

         21  impossibility of moving off the May 5th day based on

         22  information which has come to light to us by our

         23  staff over the last weekend.  It would, you know,

         24  put us in a difficult situation to still have that

         25  question on the table, while the water rates go up
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          2  6.5 percent.  I think you can appreciate our

          3  position. Before you leave, we will set a date for

          4  them to meet, and hopefully they will be supremely

          5  productive.

          6                 And I thank you and your good staff

          7  as always.

          8                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Thank you very

          9  much, my pleasure to be here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, the next

         11  witness, Monica Norris, who will be representing the

         12  Office of Queens Borough President Helen Marshall.

         13                 Ms. Norris, thank you for joining us.

         14    The Counsel to the Committee will place you under

         15  oath, and you can proceed with the Borough

         16  President's statement.

         17                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         18  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

         19  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         20  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         21                 MS. NORRIS:  I do.

         22                 MS. DE COSTANZA:  Thank you.

         23                 MS. NORRIS:  Good morning.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, thank you,

         25  just please state your name for the record, and
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          2  proceed with your testimony.

          3                 MS. NORRIS:  My name is Monica

          4  Norris, and I am here to deliver testimony on behalf

          5  of Queens Borough President, Helen Marshall.

          6                  "Thank you for giving me the

          7  opportunity to comment on the proposed resolutions.

          8  As the Queens Borough President, I am presented on a

          9  daily basis with issues affecting the Queens

         10  citizens' quality of life, including their economic

         11  well being. Therefore, whenever possible, I do

         12  whatever I can to protect their rights, that is why

         13  I strongly support resolution No. 794, calling upon

         14  the New York City Water Board to reestablish a six-

         15  year time frame within which customers may challenge

         16  the fees, rates, rents, and other service

         17  established by the New York City Water Board for

         18  water and wastewater services.

         19                 I also support the pre- considered

         20  resolutions calling upon the New York City Water

         21  Board not to set rates for water and wastewater

         22  services for each fiscal year until at least thirty

         23  days after the adoption of the City's budget for

         24  each fiscal year and to take all steps necessary to

         25  implement this change.
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          2                 As elected officials, I believe that

          3  it is our duty and responsibility to protect and

          4  advocate for the rights and interests of the people

          5  we represent.  We must, whenever possible, advocate

          6  for the greatest protections afforded them under the

          7  law.

          8                 I recently testified before ether New

          9  York City Water Board, against its proposed water

         10  and wastewater rates increased for the upcoming

         11  Fiscal Year 2004.  In these especially economic

         12  trying times, the proposed rate increase of 6.5 will

         13  impose even greater financial burdens on this City's

         14  residents. The size of the increase substantially

         15  exceeds the current inflation rate; and it is

         16  especially onerous since it would be in effect

         17  almost immediately following the recent historic

         18  increase in property taxes in New York City.

         19                 The Borough of Queens, as I am sure

         20  you are aware, is the most diverse county in the

         21  nation.  It has an especially high percentage of

         22  elderly individuals on pensions, as well as the

         23  highest proportion of newly arrived immigrants, with

         24  limited financial resources.  As is stated in the

         25  resolution, many of our residents, particularly
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          2  immigrants and working poor as well as the elderly,

          3  do not necessarily have the knowledge and expertise

          4  to determine whether they are being overcharged

          5  since they typically possess limited knowledge

          6  regarding the Water Board rates and policies.

          7  Therefore, it is incumbent upon us, their elected

          8  officials to do whatever we can to afford them the

          9  greater protections under the law.  Resolution

         10  number 794 does just that, it calls upon the New

         11  York City Water board to give our residents six

         12  years to appealing the fees, rates, rents and other

         13  services. It given them enough time, if they do not

         14  understand the process, to secure whatever

         15  assistance they may need to maneuver the system.

         16  Surely, this is not too much to ask of a government

         17  that represents the people.

         18                 Again, thank you for the opportunity

         19  to comment on the proposed resolutions."

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         21  thank you very much.

         22                 MS. NORRIS:  You are welcome.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And our next

         24  witness, Albert Arroyo of Unite, an Frank Park of

         25  Arrow Linen.
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          2                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          3  right?  I am just going to swear you in, thank you.

          4                 In the testimony that you are about

          5  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

          6  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          7                 MR. ARROYO:  I do.

          8                 MR. PARK:  I do.

          9                 MS. DE COSTANZA:  Thank you.  Please

         10  state your name for the record, and proceed with

         11  your testimony.  And in order to get the microphones

         12  to work, the light on the red button has to off, and

         13  then the microphone will be on.  Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  It is a City

         15  Council thing.

         16                 MR. ARROYO:  Okay, my name is Albert

         17  Arroyo.  I am the Secretary/Treasurer for the

         18  laundry workers of UNITE.  And first of all, want to

         19  thank you, Council Members Gennaro and Weprin for

         20  holding this hearing, and raising these important

         21  issues.

         22                 UNITE is an internationally union

         23  with some 250 members, a thousand members, of which

         24  40,000 of them working in industrial laundries.

         25  Here in New York the Metropolitan area, we represent
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          2  over 4,000 union workers.  These members work in

          3  industrial laundries, places where hotels,

          4  restaurants, and hospitals send their linens and

          5  uniforms to be cleaned.  And I am joined today by

          6  two members of ours.  Jose Francisco Gomez from

          7  Arrow Linen, from Brooklyn, and Modesto Alvarez,

          8  Rainbow Laundry in the Bronx.

          9                 Industrial laundry work is not easy

         10  or pleasant.  It is dirty work, it is very, very hot

         11  in the summer, very, very cold in the winter, and

         12  our members clean bed sheets from hospitals and

         13  hotels, and they never know what they will find

         14  among those loads.

         15                 But with a union on the job, this

         16  work provides a decent wage and health care benefits

         17  for thousands of New Yorkers. Many of them are

         18  recent immigrants from Haiti or Latin American, and

         19  do not have many other employment options.  They

         20  depend on this work to put food on the table and

         21  ensure health coverage for their families.

         22                 The proposed water rate increase

         23  would hurt this industry and these workers, as well.

         24    Laundries already pay a steep price for redoing

         25  business in New York City.  Rates have quadrupled in
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          2  the past decade; making New York's water rates are

          3  already some of the most expensive in the area.

          4  Another 6.5 percent increase would cost these

          5  companies tens of thousands of dollars.  Since

          6  laundries do not make a large profit, they will need

          7  to make up that difference somehow.  We fear they

          8  may lay off workers who so desperately need these

          9  jobs.  They may even relocate to the suburbs of Long

         10  Island, Westchester, New Jersey, or Connecticut,

         11  which many laundries have already done and where

         12  water rates and property taxes are much cheaper.

         13                 Our members are already facing though

         14  times.  A property tax increase will hurt homeowners

         15  and tenants alike.  The 50- cent raise in the subway

         16  means getting to work will cost more, much more, and

         17  now they face the prospect of losing their jobs

         18  because of another tax hike.

         19                 New York is an immigrant city, and we

         20  must have jobs that are available to recent

         21  immigrants without extensive education or English

         22  language skills.  Simply put, this City cannot

         23  afforded to lose any more jobs.  Please do not push

         24  the laundry industry out of New York; stop the water

         25  rate increase.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

          4  much.  Mr. Park, and then we will ask questions, if

          5  we have any of both of you?

          6                 MR. PARK:  I am a manager for Arrow

          7  Linen Supply, located in Brooklyn, and we are

          8  currently employing 200 people.  I would like to

          9  thank Council Member Gennaro and Weprin for given me

         10  the opportunity to voice a concern over the proposed

         11  water rate increase.

         12                 Unlike other industries, water is a

         13  major expense in the laundry, and therefore, another

         14  increase from the City will greatly impact our

         15  industries.  In just the past two years, we have

         16  experienced 10 percent increase in water rate, and

         17  in the last 18 years, water rates have been tripled.

         18    Our annual water bill for last year was $200,000.

         19  With the proposed increase it will cost an

         20  additional $13,000 per year to operate in New York

         21  City.  Recently, we received an 18 percent property

         22  tax increase.  Parking fines, which are an

         23  unavoidable business expense had doubled, coupled

         24  with a proposed water rate increase, we are facing

         25  an additional $53,000 per annual in operating costs

                                                            94

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  from just from these three New York City rate hikes.

          3                 As a result of these and other major

          4  cost augmentations such as a 30 percent increase in

          5  natural gas rate, we will be forced to charge

          6  customers higher prices.  Our customers in turn will

          7  look for other laundries outside of City, our volume

          8  will decrease, and layoff will result.  Layoff will

          9  only be a short- term solution.  I know for a fact

         10  that Arrow Linen Supply would begin plans for

         11  relocation, and I must assume that other New York

         12  City laundries will do the same.

         13                 Ever since 9/11, we all know what

         14  happen to the stock market and tourism.  You may ask

         15  what does this have to do with the laundry industry.

         16    Well, with the market being down, people are not

         17  going to restaurants as much and with tourism being

         18  down the hotels and restaurants are suffering.  The

         19  consequence of which has been layoffs in commercial

         20  laundry.

         21                 I feel Mayor Bloomberg's budget

         22  balancing is moving in a reverse direction and the

         23  City is going to suffer serious consequences in the

         24  long run.  If laundry cannot afford increases, are

         25  forced to layoff people, down size, and relocate
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          2  outside of the New York City then total revenue

          3  contribution from all the laundries will be less

          4  than that before the increases.

          5                 Those workers who were once

          6  contributors are now an expense to the City and with

          7  further increases from the City, relocating becomes

          8  more realistic.  The City needs to help industries

          9  to stay in business more than ever.  Please help us

         10  stay in business for the good of New York and New

         11  Yorkers.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         13  Park.  My office has had a lot of discussions with

         14  Unite, I know that you are a Unite shop.  We very

         15  much welcome the partnership of Unite and your

         16  advocacy on path of the laundry industry and all

         17  those who work there.  So, you are very helpful in

         18  getting us to the point where we are today.  And you

         19  know, thanks for pushing us, we appreciate it.

         20                 MR. PARK:  Okay, thank you for the

         21  opportunity.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Just to

         23  reiterate, as you heard before, we at the Council

         24  are very concerned of the increase, any increase

         25  more than absolutely necessary because of the recent
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          2  real property tax and all the other increases the

          3  MTA, and everything else.  So we do appreciate your

          4  support on that issue, and bringing that to our

          5  attention.

          6                 I believe Council Member Lopez had a

          7  question.

          8  COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Yes, I just want to know if

          9  by attrition, your organizations, be they union or

         10  be the owners of the facilities.  Had you done an

         11  impact study of how damaging the increases on the

         12  water would be to the industry in question?

         13                 MR. PARK:  Yes, as is stated in the

         14  testimony, it just becomes more operating costs.

         15  The increase in the cost will be passed onto

         16  customers.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I understand,

         18  but had you done an impact study on this, or not?

         19                 MR. PARK:  We are taking other means

         20  of attending the infrastructures, trying to

         21  economize, I mean, to try to run the plant more

         22  efficient.  And Arrow Linen, in fact, in the last

         23  five years had put new machines in it, we have

         24  reduced our water usage by one- third.  So we have

         25  squeezed our belt for the last five years.
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          2                 Any additional increase, it just

          3  cannot --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Let me say why I

          5  am asking the question, both of you from the side of

          6  the union and from the side of the owners.  It would

          7  be very smart, and I will recommend that both of you

          8  look into putting a very clear study about the

          9  impact of this in economic terms.  And how this can

         10  destroy jobs, and how this can destroy businesses.

         11                 But it have to be put in very, you

         12  know, numerical way.

         13                 MR. PARK:  Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Details.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Because every

         16  action that we take in the City, like it or not, at

         17  the end of the day it is an economic action one way

         18  or another.  And unless we begin talking in dollar

         19  terms, we do not see the connection between the

         20  issues that we are dealing with.  Then it is a very

         21  strong recommendation that I make to the union, what

         22  would be the impact in term of job loss, and what

         23  will be the impact in term of those people with our

         24  job, how that will carry on in the economy of New

         25  York City, and for the people who are the owners,

                                                            98

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  how that can destroy potentially the business that

          3  they have.

          4                 And that is just a common

          5  recommendation that I am making to you.

          6                 MR. PARK:  Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And if you do

          8  that, it would be great if you give us a copy and

          9  release that information in a press conference form

         10  or something like that, because it is important for

         11  that debate.  And not to perceive this issue of

         12  water,  only affecting the person who live in a

         13  particular building using water for drinking purpose

         14  or cleaning purpose only.  Okay? Thank you.

         15                 MR. PARK:  Okay, thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         17                 MR. PARK:  Thank you.

         18                 MR. ARROYO:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:   Mike Lockhart,

         20  President of Coalition for Water Bill Justice.  Mr.

         21  Lockhart, good to see you, as always.

         22                 MR. LOCKHART:  Good to see you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, we

         24  welcome your testimony, as well as any comments you

         25  may have on testimony that has preceded you.  The
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          2  Counsel to the Committee will swear you in, and then

          3  you can proceed with your testimony.

          4                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  The testimony that

          5  you are about to give, do you swear or affirm to

          6  tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

          7  truth?

          8                 MR. LOCKHART:  So help me, God.

          9  MS. DE COSTANZA:  Thank you.

         10                 MR. LOCKHART:  Thank you.  First of

         11  all, I would like to thank Council Members Gennaro

         12  and Weprin for having this very important hearing.

         13                 My name is Michael Lockhart.  I am

         14  founder and chairman for the Coalition of Water Bill

         15  Justice, a grassroots organization that was

         16  established in April of 2000 to advocate fair

         17  billing practices for New York City water customers.

         18                 I am here today testifying in support

         19  of Resolution 794.  From its inception in 1984 until

         20  1999, the Water Board DEP filed the New York State

         21  Public Service Commissioner standard of a six- year

         22  statute of limitations for filing complaints on

         23  billing over charges.

         24                 In 1999, the Water Board changed its

         25  longstanding policy from six years to just two
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          2  years.  Angry water customers took their fight to

          3  Albany, and Governor Pataki restored it to six

          4  years.  However, after only 16 days of being in

          5  effect, Pataki passed into law a compromise bill

          6  that shortened it back down to four years, due to

          7  heavy lobbying by the Giuliani Administration.

          8                 A short grievance period is unfair

          9  because billing errors can be difficult to detect,

         10  and many customers do not realize they have been

         11  overcharged until an accountant or plumber has

         12  advised them, which may be too late.  Billing over

         13  charges can result from, among other reasons,

         14  mathematical miscalculations, bills on non- existent

         15  meters, overlapping billing periods, overestimated

         16  bills on broken meters, and bills calculated using

         17  incorrect rates.  Often water bill payments are

         18  deducted automatically from a consumer's bank

         19  account.  In these cases, errors may not be

         20  discovered until an account is closed years later.

         21                 New York City consumers and

         22  businesses deserve the same rights to challenge

         23  overcharges on their water bills, as they do with

         24  their gas, electric and telephone bills.  Verizon,

         25  Condition Edison, and Keyspan are all required to
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          2  allow their customers up to six years to contest

          3  erroneous utility charges, and so should DEP.

          4  Anything less than six years is arbitrary and

          5  substandard.

          6                 For many years, DEP has had

          7  considerable problems with issuing accurate bills.

          8  These overcharges are often significant as they are

          9  multiplied by many months of overcharges. The

         10  impetus for shortening the timeframe was DEP's

         11  desire to reduce the volume of complaints it

         12  receives from customers.  Thus, the only beneficiary

         13  of this rule is DEP, which has fewer complaints to

         14  answer and fewer refunds to issue.  Consumers, on

         15  the other hand, are being denied refunds that they

         16  deserve.

         17                 The Water board has defended this

         18  abbreviated grievance policy by stating complaints

         19  are easier to resolve if filed sooner, rather than

         20  later.  Although this may sometimes be true, most

         21  old errors can be resolved just she easily as recent

         22  errors.  In any event, it is isn't fair to deny

         23  innocent consumers refunds that they deserve, simply

         24  because its more difficult for DEP to resolve.  DEP

         25  should reduce billing complaints by reducing billing
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          2  errors, not by prohibiting customers form making

          3  complaints within an arbitrary time period.

          4  Restoring a six- year grievance period is also

          5  important because it restores an incentive for DEP

          6  to issue accurate bills initially.

          7                 In closing, let me also state for the

          8  record, that we have been working with the current

          9  Water Board administration about changing the

         10  language of the grievance policy so that, in the

         11  case that a consumer comes forward with a complaint

         12  within the required four- year time period, but he

         13  or she has overcharge that cover periods beyond four

         14  years, the Board would still provide consumers a

         15  full six years of refunds.  The language that we

         16  have suggested to the Board reads as follows:

         17                  "If a series of bills contain errors

         18  covering a period longer than four years, a

         19  correction will be made for up to six years, as long

         20  as a complaint is made within four years of the date

         21  of the last error."

         22                 This important language modification

         23  would soften the blow of the reduced grievance

         24  period.  We are hopeful that the Board will approve

         25  it at their next meeting on May 5th.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

          3  Lockhart.  Let me just ask you a question regarding

          4  a statement that was made by Mr. Kusterbeck.

          5                 MR. LOCKHART:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  He indicated

          7  that prior to the State Legislation, which formally,

          8  hang on a minute, right, in 1999, the Water Board

          9  took an act, you know, the policy went from six

         10  years to two years, and Albany said, no, wait a

         11  minute, we should be six years.  And then Albany

         12  said, nah, second thought we will do it four years.

         13  So that is the chronology as far as you are

         14  concerned.

         15                 MR. LOCKHART:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: According to Mr.

         17  Kusterbeck, he indicated that prior to the 1999

         18  action of the Water Board, what was in existence at

         19  that time was not a six- year policy, but sort of an

         20  uneven, sometimes it's six, sometimes it's two,

         21  sometimes it's nothing, and what they did in 1999

         22  was to standardize or codify mish- mosh of, you

         23  know, different approaches, which I said, two years

         24  seemed consistent with what other water suppliers

         25  did throughout the state or something, and that is
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          2  how they came up with two years.

          3                 I think that is not your

          4  understanding of what happened so - -

          5                 MR. LOCKHART:  Well I listened

          6  carefully to his choice of words and how he answered

          7  the question, under oath, was that prior to 1999 the

          8  policy was six years on refunds, but on perspective

          9  situations there was, they did not go back at all.

         10                 The answer is six years on refunds,

         11  and what he was talking about was when you, in some

         12  cases, let's say a laundry mat, for instance, who

         13  was on the wrong rate, but never applied for a sewer

         14  allowance discounted, which laundry mats are

         15  eligible for. They would only correct it

         16  perspectively only.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.

         18                 MR. LOCKHART:  But in the event that

         19  there was a refund, which means you proved that DEP

         20  was at fault, it was always six years undeniably.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.

         22                 MR. LOCKHART:  It was not in their

         23  rate schedule, but it is indefensible for them to

         24  say that it was anything but six years, it was their

         25  practice.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, right,

          3  right.

          4                 MR. LOCKHART:  It was every six

          5  years.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So your sworn

          7  testimony is that they had a well- known practice of

          8  six years was the "rule."

          9                 MR. LOCKHART: That is correct.  It

         10  was, to their defense at the time, that that was

         11  their reason for putting in their rate schedule,

         12  this new policy of two years, because it had never

         13  been in their policy before.  However, if you look

         14  at their own internal, you know, responses to

         15  customers, they have a screen that used to be

         16  accessible like, to consumers, and it showed that

         17  their internal policy was six years.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  And if

         19  the policy is six years, they have to give that to

         20  everyone.  Understood, thank you, thank you.

         21                 MR. LOCKHART:  Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I appreciate

         23  your being here with us, as always.  And thanks for

         24  standing up for the water rate payers of the City of

         25  New York, we look forward to, you know, moving this,
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          2  and see if we can get them to do the right thing

          3  here.

          4                 MR. LOCKHART:  Right, thank you very

          5  much.  I appreciate it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, we have a

          7  business panel to the extent that they are still

          8  here.  Jack Freund of RSA, Hershel Weiss of BOMA,

          9  Ed`Korman, Small Property Owners of New York, Joseph

         10  Figola, Small Property Owners of New York.  Hershel

         11  Weiss, okay.  All right, Mr. Weiss, yes, I called

         12  you, yes.  Thank you, we will just be one second.

         13                 We are going to proceed with your

         14  panel, we are going to just call the next panel,

         15  Eric Goldstein, NRDC, Eugenia Flatow, Coalition for

         16  Bight, and Carolyn Zolas from the Sierra Club,

         17  Watershed Campaign.  They are on deck, okay.

         18                 So, thanks for your patience,

         19  appreciate it very much.  The Council to the

         20  Committee will issue the oath and then you can

         21  proceed with your testimony.  Thanks for being here.

         22                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         23  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

         24  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         25  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?
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          2                 MR. KORMAN:  I do.

          3                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, I do.

          4                 MS. FLATOW:  I do.

          5                 MS. ZOLAS:  I do.

          6                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, please

          8  state your name for the record, and proceed with

          9  your testimony.

         10                 MR. KORMAN:  My name is Edward

         11  Korman, I am the Executive Vice President of the

         12  Small Property Owners of New York.           The

         13  Water Board rates keep rising year after year. We

         14  must change the way the billing is established and

         15  improve the communications between DEP and owners.

         16  With all due respect, to the Commissioner's office

         17  and the Water Board, I do not they are privy to the

         18  way the main body of their DEP operates and

         19  communicates with the customers and how they work.

         20                 The water rates keep rising year

         21  after year, and the owners of small buildings do not

         22  see any of the advantages and benefits of the so-

         23  called investments used by the increase rates. The

         24  impact of these increases never mentioned the small

         25  owners of four, five, six and ten- unit properties
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          2  as either larger properties in Manhattan and Queens,

          3  as well as the impact of the single- family homes of

          4  the seniors.

          5                 In a recent article, the average

          6  homeowner will see a $33 increase per year, which

          7  according to the Queens Borough President, Helen

          8  Marshall, the 6.5 percent increase substantially

          9  exceeds the current inflation rate.  All properties

         10  of the City of New York must have a water meter

         11  installed and have the option of being built by

         12  either water meter or remaining on frontage.  When

         13  these programs were implemented, there were many

         14  errors by DEP and could take forever to correct.  If

         15  a property has a mortgage, the odds of being

         16  notified of any changes in fees, programs, are nil,

         17  because bills are generally sent to the bank, and

         18  nothing is sent to the owners.

         19                 At the present time, I will take the

         20  example of a six- family home, which has a frontage

         21  bill of approximately 15 to 17 hundred dollars per

         22  year, depending on what the size of the property is.

         23    DEP is doing away with its cost, saving program

         24  caps and frontage in favor of the multi- family,

         25  conservation program, which will bill $454.18 per
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          2  apartment, per year.  So a six- family home will now

          3  have an annual water charge of 2,725.28 plus the 6.5

          4  percent increase, which is a whopping 87 percent

          5  increase exceeding the current inflation rate.

          6                 The small owners, who in my opinion,

          7  has the most diverse populous in the housing

          8  industry.  The undocumented, low earners, people on

          9  different regulated programs, who we know double and

         10  triple up to have a decent place to live.  An owner

         11  who does not live at the property does not live at

         12  the property does not know and cannot know who is

         13  living in the apartment, and wonder why his water

         14  bills and fuel bills are excessive.

         15                 The water consumption is doubled and

         16  tripled, the cost of fuel to heat the water is

         17  doubled and tripled.  So this owner could choose to

         18  remain on frontage because being billed by meter

         19  would be more than the mortgage, and now has an 87

         20  percent rate increase.  These neighborhoods rarely

         21  see any of the funds used for capital improvements.

         22  The sewers are leaking and causing the roads to

         23  collapse.  The streets are worse than a war zone.

         24  We need a fair and equitable change in the way water

         25  rates are set that effect various types of housing.
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          2                 One must file an applications along

          3  with a $25.00 fee for each property to be eligible

          4  for the multi- family conservation program.  There

          5  are many properties that were put on this program

          6  without the owner being notified, and some that did

          7  file are being a difficult time, because no one was

          8  at the property when the inspector came.  DEP is

          9  very bad a the notifying owners when someone is

         10  coming to a property, or when bills are sent to the

         11  wrong owner's address.  They assume, one sits and

         12  waits for them. Properties are registered with HPD,

         13  which DEP should utilize to notify their customers

         14  of a visit or of a program change or of an overdue

         15  bill, which in most cases was never sent.  It was

         16  always sent to the bank, sent to the old owner, it

         17  could take more then six years to realize and

         18  correct an overcharge.  It seems DEP changes the

         19  rules in their favor.

         20                 We get many calls from members

         21  concerning the leak forgiveness.  In one case, which

         22  I have attached to this document, the owner has a

         23  boiler that was leaking and was losing water.  The

         24  boiler lost water, so it took time to find.  The

         25  normal $2,500 to $3,000 water bill for this property
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          2  is now 36 to 38 thousand dollars and constantly

          3  accumulating fees and penalties.  DEP was given,

          4  excuse me, DEP was given documentation of all the

          5  repairs, and costs, and DEP's Leak Forgiveness

          6  Program only gave this homeowner $2,000, and keeps

          7  stalling and stalling, and adding late fees,

          8  something must be done.  Why were sewer charges

          9  included, when the water went into the ground, and

         10  not the sewer system.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         13  Thank you very much.  We will just hear testimony

         14  from the other witnesses, and put questions to both

         15  of you at once.

         16                 MR. KORMAN:  Thank you.

         17                 MR. WEISS:  I would like to thank the

         18  Council for the opportunity to be heard.  My name is

         19  Hershel Weiss.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay, you

         21  have to speak right into the microphone, just like I

         22  am doing, just like this.

         23                 MR. WEISS:  No problem.  My name is

         24  Hershel Weiss, and I represent Building Owners and

         25  Managers Association of Greater New York.  BOMA
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          2  strongly supports re- establishing a six- year time

          3  frame for customers to challenge water bills from

          4  the New York City Water Board.  BOMA, New York

          5  represents the commercial building industry in New

          6  York City, has 845 members who manage and maintain

          7  over 400 million of square feet commercial property,

          8  and protect over three million tenants in the

          9  process.

         10                 The Water Boards' bills are

         11  notoriously fraught with errors, oftenly are made up

         12  with no factual relationship to the properties

         13  actual water consumption.  Customers, typically have

         14  little knowledge of how the Water Board bills for

         15  water and sewer use, and over billing in often

         16  discovered only after a substantial time has past.

         17  A six- year time frame is consistent with the New

         18  York State Public Service Commission practice

         19  regarding bill challenges to other utility

         20  providers, as well as the New York statute of

         21  limitations pertaining to contract actions.

         22                 The Water Board's customers should

         23  have, at least, have the right to redress Water

         24  Board bills for the statutory period, since under

         25  New York State Law there is no time limit barring
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          2  the Water Board from collecting bills more than six-

          3  years old, whether the bills are justified or not.

          4  Furthermore, in the Water Board's proposed Fiscal

          5  2004 rate structure summary, they state, "with

          6  respect to billing adjustments involving multiple

          7  bills and multiple billing periods, the language

          8  will explicitly iterate the intent of the Board, and

          9  the administrative practice of not, I repeat not

         10  limiting back billing adjustments in cases where the

         11  total amount re- billed is less than the total

         12  amount billed prior to the billing adjustment."

         13  Simply put, the Water Board continues to back bill

         14  taxpayers beyond four years, while limiting our

         15  ability to correct DEP bills in excess of four

         16  years.

         17                 As a bit of a tangent, this week the

         18  Water Board also proposes to eliminate all caps on

         19  premises in excess of six apartment units.  They

         20  state that there staff, "staff believes that the cap

         21  program is no longer necessary for larger, multiple-

         22  family programs in view of the availability of the

         23  Multi- family Conservation Program."  BOMA believes

         24  these caps are indeed necessary.  The Multi- family

         25  Conservation Program only allows the owner to cap
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          2  future bills, and has no effect on pass bills.  The

          3  existing cap program have provided a safety net to

          4  owners, that if experienced a period of extremely

          5  high consumption by allowing a property owner to

          6  retroactively, and I underline retroactively, cap

          7  his bill at a level above the normal bill, but below

          8  a potential, devastating bill.

          9                 In the past, when a constituent

         10  walked into any Council member's office, and

         11  complained about a water bill, you could have

         12  offered the DEP to cap the bill.  In the future, no

         13  such relief will exist if this program is

         14  eliminated.  Since the Water Board is a self-

         15  contained authority, which neither receives money

         16  from, nor gives money to New York State Department

         17  of Finance, adoption of a six- year rule can not

         18  have an adverse effect on the City budget  However,

         19  it can have positive impact on the real estate

         20  industry, related businesses, and quality of life in

         21  New York City.

         22                 The Water Board has been changing its

         23  rules every year in unapologetic effort to deny

         24  property owners the right to seek redress for over

         25  bills, while it employs aggressive tactics to
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          2  collect bills it cannot justify.  The Water Board

          3  systematic denial of due process to property owners

          4  presents enormous risk and costs the property

          5  ownership in New York City, and encourages flight

          6  from this by giving property owners such basic

          7  rights as a six- year period to demand adjustments

          8  to over bills, you are going to investigation in the

          9  rebirth of our economy.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         12  Thank you for your very compelling testimony, both

         13  of you.

         14                 Mr. Weiss, I was not aware that the

         15  Water Board continues to back bill beyond the four

         16  years.

         17                 MR. WEISS:  I was not either, but

         18  they, if you look in the text that they are

         19  proposing in their program summary, and the quoted

         20  is exactly what I stated.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, I am just

         22  saying this is,- -

         23                 MR. WEISS:  And I have a copy here of

         24  the actual --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, it was
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          2  important that you bring that to our attention,

          3  because it makes our case stronger for the re-

          4  establishment to the six- year rule, and if

          5  anything, that helps us to do that.  It is good,

          6  also, we are going to be focusing more on the cap

          7  program, so thank you for that.  And I think that,

          8  also, it supports the testimony by Mr. Korman on

          9  what happens when problems go along and people get

         10  out- of- sight bills, and there are no, you know,

         11  cap remedies for that.

         12                 So I thank you both for coming before

         13  us. I am very grateful to the two of you.

         14                 MR. KORMAN:  In reality, there is

         15  nobody to speak with.  We used to, when we had the

         16  past Commissioners, there was a great deal of

         17  networking between the reality organizations, and

         18  they had people that were interested in settling all

         19  their discrepancies.  A lot of these people have now

         20  since retired and given packages to retire, gone

         21  into private industry, and the new regime that has

         22  come in, we just cannot break the barrier, and we

         23  hope that the City Council will be our lead to try

         24  and negotiate some of this.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Absolutely, I
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          2  think we can do that.  As an institution, you do

          3  also have the remedy of your individual Council

          4  member, you know, whoever that may be, where your

          5  respective businesses or buildings are.

          6                 And Council Member Nelson has a

          7  question.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

          9  Because on one hand the Chair of the Finance

         10  Forecasting Committee, we want to get all the money

         11  that is coming to the City.  On the other hand, this

         12  could, long- term could be even worse for the City.

         13  The City does not need to become a landlord.

         14                 MR. KORMAN:  It will be.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And I see

         16  that happening on the road.  DEP really needs to

         17  have some ombudsman/woman, whatever the terminology

         18  would be today that I voted on, gender neutral, but

         19  somebody to actually respond to the needs of the

         20  property owners. Because the way it is going,

         21  doubling of the fees and the penalties, it is going

         22  to be catastrophic.

         23                 So, both Chairs, we will get back

         24  with this to David, as well.  We have to be a little

         25  more aggressive with this I believe.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. KORMAN:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. WEISS:  I do not believe this is

          5  a budget issue on the caps, it is more the DEP's

          6  desire to streamline a process. It would make the

          7  process simpler, but it would cause a devastation to

          8  the industry.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         10  thank you very much.  And as we mentioned earlier,

         11  Eric Goldstein, Carolyn Zolas, and Eugenia Flatow.

         12  To be followed by, Marian Rose, Suzanna Glidden,

         13  David Ferguson, and George Reyes- Montblanc.

         14                 Okay, we will do a group swearing in,

         15  how is that?

         16                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         17  right hand?  In the testimony that you are about to

         18  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         19  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         20                 ALL:  I do.

         21                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  It

         23  is wonderful to have you here, as always.  So

         24  without further ado, please state your name for the

         25  record and proceed with your good testimony.
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          2                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Good afternoon, Mr.

          3  Chairman, and Council Members Nelson and Brewer, my

          4  name is Eric Goldstein, and I am co- director of the

          5  Urban Program with the Natural Resources Defense

          6  Council.  As you know, NRDC is a national, non-

          7  profit environmental group that has been active on

          8  New York City issues for over 30 years.  We are

          9  pleased to be here today to support the

         10  Preconsidered Resolution calling upon the New York

         11  City Water Board not to set water and sewer rates

         12  for the year, until after adoption of the City's

         13  budget.

         14                 At the outset, we note that NRDC's

         15  position on this issue should not be viewed as a

         16  broad- based attack on this year's proposed 6.5

         17  water and sewer increase.  Indeed, NRDC supports the

         18  proposed increase, and while the detailed review of

         19  the 10- year capital plan is not yet possible, we

         20  believe from our preliminary assessment that it

         21  moves the City in the long- term best interest of

         22  New York water sewer and rate payers.

         23  Mayor LaGuardia said that a good Chief Executive

         24  must be able to look and plan 50 to 75 years down

         25  the line, and we believe that the City capital plan
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          2  as it is now stands, it's 10- year proposal moves in

          3  that direction.  NRDC is particularly supportive of

          4  the priority emphasis that the 10- year spending

          5  plan places on mandatory, on maintaining, restoring

          6  and protecting our water supply infrastructure and

          7  safeguarding our Upstate Watershed through cost

          8  effective pollution prevention.

          9                 We endorse the emphasis of the

         10  proposal on the continuing comprehensive Watershed

         11  Protection Program.  Among the key elements of that

         12  program are:  The acquisition of watershed lands,

         13  sewage treatment plant upgrades in the watershed,

         14  enforcement of watershed rules, continuing

         15  partnership with Upstate communities, and we hope, a

         16  major initiative for acquisition of farm and forest

         17  easements.

         18                 We also support the monthly, billion

         19  dollar Kensico Aqueduct Project.  This is an example

         20  of a massive, but essential public works initiatives

         21  that are needed, if we are able to meet the

         22  Downstate water needs for the 21st Century.

         23  Moreover, in a post- 9/11 world, security needs are

         24  paramount in the hardening of a water supply

         25  infrastructure has become another essential activity
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          2  that will require increase spending.

          3                 Of course, nobody is delighted when

          4  water rates go up, and New Yorkers have already

          5  experienced the property tax increases, the subway

          6  fare increases, and water rates themselves have

          7  climbed in leaps and bounds over the past 15 years.

          8  Still, if New York City Water is no longer a

          9  bargaining, it will be, even after the proposal is

         10  adopted, reasonably priced.  The current rate of $40

         11  a month for the average homeowner is lower than any

         12  other cities, including Los Angeles, San Francisco,

         13  Philadelphia, Boston, and Washington, D.C.  And so,

         14  while we recognize the burden that even in very

         15  small increase creates a hardship for some rate

         16  payers, if you look at this in the overall context

         17  of what folks around the nation are paying, New York

         18  City water rates are reasonably priced.

         19                 On the other hand, there are some

         20  existing and potential capital needs that may still

         21  not be covered by this 10 year spending plan.  The

         22  DEP plan seeks to find the balance, and indeed, if

         23  every legitimate water and sewer need advanced

         24  simultaneously, City rate payers would face multiple

         25  years of double digit increases, and that would
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          2  clearly be unacceptable to water and sewer rate

          3  payers.

          4                 To be sure, we still have some

          5  concerns and questions about the 10- year capital

          6  plan.  We continue to worry that sufficient funds

          7  may not be available for the necessary expenses for

          8  Cat/Del (phonetic) filtration avoidance.  And if we

          9  do not fully fund the filtration avoidance of the

         10  Catskill and Delaware system, we would most

         11  assuredly face a federal or state filtration order

         12  at a cost of $6 billion.

         13                 Second, we are not yet convinced that

         14  the plan, Hillview Reservoir Cover Project should be

         15  abandoned, although we are open to being persuaded.

         16                 Third, we not that funds in the 10-

         17  year capital plan are apparently not available

         18  should there be a catastrophic failure of the

         19  Delaware Aqueduct.

         20                 Fourth, we would like to be

         21  supportive of the Commissioner's plan to save money

         22  on solving the problems of nitrogen removal, and

         23  combined sewer overflow while meeting the goals of

         24  the existing consent degree, but the detail public

         25  case for such changes has yet to be made, an
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          2  important state and federal approvals must still be

          3  obtained.

          4                 And while sewer system expenditures

          5  will necessarily take second place on the capital

          6  spending priority list in this 10 year plan, we are

          7  very concerned that necessary maintenance and

          8  upgrades at the long troubled North River Sewage

          9  Plant not be deferred.

         10                 In sum, we believe that under Chris

         11  Wards leadership, the Administration has crafted an

         12  ambitious capital spending with long- term vision

         13  and the necessary focus on protecting our drinking

         14  water supply, and NRDC is supportive of that plan.

         15                 Having said that, we believe that the

         16  public would be better served if the annual and

         17  water sewer rate proceedings were better coordinated

         18  with the City's overall budget deliberations, and so

         19  for such reasons we support the preconceived

         20  resolution.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         23  thank you. Eugenia.

         24                 MS. FLATOW:  Okay, I never thought I

         25  get to one up an RDC, but I have been at this for 50
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          2  years.  Most of you are not old enough to remember

          3  that, I am representing a number of organizations,

          4  and we are delighted to find the Council finally

          5  asserting itself and requiring some supervision or

          6  cooperate, which would be even better on a difficult

          7  problem.  These are life support systems, and they

          8  are very old, older than I am, which I did not think

          9  was possible, but it is.

         10                 I would like to make a couple of

         11  points, which I think are critical.

         12                 One of them is that the present

         13  system of requirements on the Commissioner, have

         14  been challenged for the first time.  They always

         15  come as unfunded mandates through a court process.

         16  I serve on any number of committees, and I cannot

         17  get any information as to what is going on before

         18  those consent orders are finished.  So the Newtown

         19  Creek consent order was much broader, than just the

         20  Newtown Creek, and pointed out the necessity for

         21  upgrading and change.

         22                 There are several things as in

         23  nitrogen and as in CSOs, where the science is not

         24  good enough yet to tell us how much we have to spend

         25  to solve the problem, and there is no triage, once a
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          2  Consent Order you are stuck.  The courts have told

          3  you what you have to do.  And I commend the

          4  Commissioner for having the courage to flout that

          5  for the first time, and for the Council for joining

          6  them and, At least, establishing what I consider the

          7  first oversight of the Water Board, which I happen

          8  to be on a committee to get established, in order to

          9  create that integrity.  And trying to figure out not

         10  only what our priorities should be, or how we should

         11  go about and when, is a very difficult process.  And

         12  it can only be solved, in my estimation by a good

         13  partnership between our political Leaders, our real

         14  estate Leaders, and our community and environmental

         15  Leaders to establish what those priorities really

         16  should be, and how much time we have to figure out

         17  how to pay for it.

         18                 I think those are very important

         19  objectives.  I commend you for the two resolutions,

         20  and I hope you will go further.

         21                 Thank you very much for allowing me

         22  to make this departure from my formal remarks, but I

         23  think you have heard most of it already.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         25  Eugenia, thanks for being here.  Thank you for your
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          2  great leadership over these years.

          3                 MS. ZOLAS:  Can you hear me?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I got you.

          5                 MS. ZOLAS:  Okay.  Hi, thank you very

          6  much for allowing me to speak.  My name is Carolyn

          7  Zolas - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If you could

          9  just tilt the microphone.

         10                 MS. ZOLAS:  Okay?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I represent the

         12  Atlantic Chapter of the Sierra, and we are in

         13  support of these resolutions. I would like to add my

         14  voice to that of this Committee, regarding the 10-

         15  year plan of the Department of Environmental

         16  Protection.  We would like to see the list of

         17  capital projects in this 10- year plan.  We would

         18  like to know what the cost is and the time to

         19  completion, and we would like to know the reasons

         20  for these projects.  We do not think it is fair to

         21  expect New York rate payers to pay 50 percent

         22  additional in their rates over the next five years,

         23  when they do not actually know what that money is

         24  going for.

         25                 I read in the papers that the DEP is
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          2  planning a $2 billion dollar tunnel from the Kensico

          3  Reservoir from the northern Bronx.  We have no

          4  detailed information as to why this tunnel is

          5  needed, or exactly how the tunnel could possibly be

          6  of immediate help to serious leaks in the Delaware

          7  Aqueduct, 100 miles to the north.

          8                 In October 2002, DEP's Commissioner

          9  Christopher Ward issued a letter critical of the

         10  Westchester County Airport de- icing plan, which

         11  ultimately stopped a back- door expansion of the

         12  airport.  This was an extremely important letter,

         13  because it showed how effective the DEP could be in

         14  protecting our watersheds.  The airport lies only

         15  250 yards from the Kensico Reservoir and has been

         16  called an environmental disaster because of the

         17  threat it poses of possible contamination of 90

         18  percent of New York City's water supply.

         19                 Yet, since that report, we have not

         20  heard of any significant challenges by the DEP

         21  regarding harmful development in the watersheds.

         22  Yet, since that report, we have not heard of any

         23  significant challenges by the DEP regarding harmful

         24  development in the watersheds.

         25                 The DEP's historic and current
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          2  failure to take critical stands against harmful

          3  development has directly contributed to the current

          4  federal order to build a $1.5 billion filtration

          5  plant in the Bronx for the Croton Watershed.  The

          6  City did not have the political will to protect this

          7  watershed in 1993, when they could have applied for

          8  filtration avoidance.  The DEP's subsequent efforts

          9  to protect the watershed have been halfhearted and

         10  ineffective.

         11                 Nevertheless, thanks to the great

         12  efforts of conservation organizations, such as

         13  Croton Clean Watershed, Clean Water Coalition,

         14  Riverkeeper, Trout Unlimited, Plan Putnam, and many

         15  others.  The Croton Watershed is still healthy

         16  enough to provide clean water to New York City

         17  without filtration.

         18                 Recently, the DEP offered to spend

         19  $200 million on Bronx parks as an enticing incentive

         20  for Bronx politicians to vote in favor of the

         21  filtration plant at the Mosholu Golf Course in Van

         22  Cortlandt Park.  We believe that this represents an

         23  inappropriate use of our water rate money.  The

         24  Mosholu Golf Course was ruled an illegal use of

         25  parkland operating legislative authorization.
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          2                 The Croton Water Supply is over 160

          3  years old, and much of the distribution system has

          4  not been upgraded.  Experts say that corroded mains

          5  and pipes are a serious hazard to water quality.

          6  Yet, to the best of our knowledge, the DEP has not

          7  announced a specific plan or a timetable to replace

          8  and renovate this ancient system.

          9                 DEP neglect is affecting all of our

         10  watersheds, including the Catskill/Delaware, which

         11  has been granted temporary permission to avoid

         12  filtration.

         13                 Leaks in the Aqueduct in Roseton,

         14  about 100 miles nothing of New York City, appears to

         15  be threatening the bulk of our water supply.

         16  According to the New York City Municipal Water

         17  Finance Authority, these leaks are losing 36 million

         18  gallons of water a day.  According to Christopher

         19  Ward today, they are losing 39 million.  The water

         20  is surfacing in the forms of springs or seats in the

         21  area.  An engineer from Malcolm Pirnie, was quoted

         22  as saying, the bedrock has broken up from fault

         23  lines in the area. Having water in the rock would

         24  increase the pressure on the water tunnel.  Concerns

         25  have been raised by Robert F. Kennedy, Jr., and
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          2  Riverkeeper, that the leaks could dissolve the

          3  surrounding limestone and cause a collapse of the

          4  tunnel, cutting off over half of New York City's

          5  water supply.

          6                 This problem has apparently existed

          7  for many years, yet, the DEP has only recently built

          8  a submersible to study the leak from inside the

          9  tunnel.  Apparently for the first time, the DEP has

         10  drilled a well near the leak to study the condition

         11  of the bedrock.  Although, these tests have not been

         12  completed, the DEP has pronounced this leak as

         13  stable.  We are concerned that while the DEP is

         14  placing high priority on finishing the Third Water

         15  Tunnel in New York City, it should not delay action

         16  on the Delaware Aqueduct leaks, if those leaks are

         17  threatening the safety of our water supply system.

         18                 We urge the City Council to

         19  investigate the facts about these leaks, and

         20  determine whether or not the DEP is taking

         21  expeditious and timely action to address them.

         22                 In view of the abysmal performance of

         23  the DEP, we urgently ask the City Council to

         24  consider the immense cost of this year's capital

         25  projects and the future 10 years.  Because of the
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          2  great amount of money that DEP is requesting during

          3  this fiscal crisis, and the gravity of our water

          4  situation, the City Council may want to consider

          5  hiring and independent engineering firm to

          6  investigate these issues and report to the City

          7  Council.  Since the DEP has shown that they cannot

          8  maintain the Watershed, how can we trust them to

          9  come up with viable future plans?

         10                 In 1973, the Cuyahoga River had to

         11  catch on fire before this nation finally passed the

         12  Clean Water Act.  We ask this Committee not to allow

         13  the same kind of disaster to happen in New York

         14  City.

         15                 We ask the City Council to

         16  investigate the details of these issues and make the

         17  DEP accountable for their actions. Please, save our

         18  water for future generations.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         21  thank you so much for your testimony.

         22                 We have to bring, but we have more

         23  witnesses, but just quickly, very quickly, my

         24  highest priority is watershed protection, and I am

         25  just curious as to where you believe --  I mean, if
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          2  you could give a grade to the DEP 10- year capital

          3  plan in terms of, to the extent to which that

          4  addresses my number one issue of watershed

          5  protection, you know, what grade would you give it,

          6  Eric?

          7                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Well it is hard to

          8  answer that question in full, because we have not -

          9   -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I am only

         11  asking easy questions as well as ask hard questions,

         12  that is my job.

         13                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We have seen only an

         14  outline of the plan, as you know, from the materials

         15  that have been made public so far.  But I would say

         16  that, on the whole, it moves definitely in the right

         17  direction with respect to protecting the Upstate

         18  watershed.  And there are questions that are going

         19  to come up about additional funds available for

         20  watershed protection.  The Commissioner has

         21  indicated that those funds will be available in this

         22  capital plan.  We need to see those details, and of

         23  course, we need to recognize that protecting the

         24  Catskill and Delaware Watershed is going to be more

         25  than a 10- year effort.  And it is going to be a

                                                            133

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  continuing need, but one that will save us, as you

          3  know, fast sums of money if we can stave off this

          4  filtration mandate for the 50- year period or so

          5  that the Commissioner is suggesting.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Great.  I would

          7  just let Eugenia answer quickly on what you think.

          8                 MS. FLATOW:  Very quickly.  I agree

          9  with Eric, completely.  But I would also like to

         10  point out that our previous Administration tried to

         11  sell off the whole system, and we had to stop it by

         12  going to the courts.  And that the question on

         13  Croton, is because the damn is a consent order, and

         14  therefore, it carries the court oversight, as to

         15  making sure that we do not have to admit that we

         16  made a mistake, in terms of protecting the Croton

         17  supply.

         18                 And I am delighted to find that this

         19  Commissioner is willing to challenge this, and

         20  hopefully with working together, we will be able to

         21  make our own judgements on what the priorities ought

         22  to be.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         24                 MS. ZOLAS:  It is difficult to give

         25  an answer, because we do not have any details about
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          2  the 10- year capital plan. I would like to know what

          3  the reasons are for the Kensico Tunnel and the

          4  state, the actual deterrent state of the Delaware

          5  leaks.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  Yes, I

          7  was just asking about watershed protection, I just

          8  asked what people's thoughts were on the watershed

          9  protection, because I really have to move to the

         10  next panel.

         11                 I think Gale also has something.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Very quickly,

         13  Eric, I know that you were here the whole time, and

         14  obviously, we are concerned about conservation, we

         15  are concerned about the Upstate Watershed, and the

         16  ratepayer.  So were there any suggestions that you

         17  would have, quickly, on the conservation front that

         18  would both address your concern about Upstate, and

         19  at the same time, the concerns of the ratepayer?

         20                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Well it certainly is

         21  true that significant steps have been made on

         22  conservation over the past decade, but more could be

         23  done, and some of the programs, such as the toilet

         24  rebate program, which have expired, ought to be

         25  renewed. There is a whole list of things that could
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          2  be done on the conservation front to continue to

          3  conserve our resources.

          4                 We have a little bit of skepticism

          5  over this plan to create an underground storage

          6  aquifer (phonetic) and certainly would need to and

          7  want to hear more details about that plan.  But we

          8  are sympathetic to the overall concerns of the rate

          9  payer, and we do believe the resolutions you are

         10  considering today, will move in the right direction

         11  of getting the City Council to play a full roll in

         12  some of these very important deliberations.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         16  thanks very much.

         17                 MS. FLATOW:  I do not think that all

         18  ratepayers are equal either.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  What?

         20                 MS. FLATOW:  I do not think that all

         21  ratepayers are equal as to the effects of these

         22  increases on them.  And I think a good deal of our

         23  housings and previous Administrations was turned

         24  over to tenants, without taking into account the

         25  rate increases.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          3  thank you.

          4                 MS. FLATOW:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, our next

          6  and last panel, we have two witnesses from Croton

          7  Clean Water Coalition, and two from HFDC.  We have

          8  George Reyes- Montblanc, David Ferguson, both from

          9  HFDC, and Marian Rose and Suzanna Glidden of the

         10  Croton Clean Water Coalition.

         11                 There is a hearing that is supposed

         12  to start here in five minutes.  Maybe it could be

         13  the case, as you take your seats, I just have to, I

         14  will be back in about 30 seconds, but maybe we can

         15  have a situation where we have one person from each

         16  group speak, and then all four will be available for

         17  questions, and I will rejoin you in 30 seconds.

         18                 Okay, thank you for your patience,

         19  the people for the next hearing are already here.

         20  So, it is unfortunate, but necessary, however, that

         21  one statement from HFDC and one statement from the

         22  Croton Clean Water.  I do not know with the other

         23  hearing already here, I do not know any other way

         24  around that.  Who wants to go for HFDC?  You have to

         25  speak right into the microphone.
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          2                 MR. FERGUSON:  Yes, I really, you

          3  know, this hearing, as I understand it, is about

          4  process, and about how rate payers and stakeholders

          5  have any chance to make their positions known.  And

          6  I find this, the way the meeting goes, because we

          7  have been through this many times, where DEP has,

          8  you know, hours, and those of us that are spending

          9  our whole lives, as you know, Jim, and then we get

         10  suddenly, this is very upsetting, extremely

         11  upsetting.  I do not care how it is planned here,

         12  this process, we have been through this before,

         13  don't like it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Next witness,

         15  please.

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I have to

         17  agree with David. We sat here all morning, some of

         18  us have come from Northern Westchester, and I think

         19  we all deserve to be heard.  All right, well let me

         20  not lose any more time on that, I think I made the

         21  point.

         22                 My name is Marian Rose, and I am

         23  President of the Croton Watershed Clean Water

         24  Coalition.  We have over 55 groups throughout the

         25  five boroughs of New York City, Westchester County,
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          2  and Putnam County.  We are very diverse, we have the

          3  HDFC Council, we have Sierra Club, the Queens Civic

          4  Congress, the Episcopal Diocese of New York, and

          5  many environmental groups.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Maybe we can

          7  right to the subject of your testimony, it would be

          8  most appreciated.

          9                 MS. ROSE:  We maintain that based on

         10  available science, Croton drinking water does not

         11  require a $1.5 billion chemical treatment filtration

         12  plant to guarantee safety.  The City could save

         13  itself $1 billion by looking at alternatives to this

         14  plan.  We maintain that in view of the existing high

         15  quality of Croton water there are far less costly

         16  means of protecting the integrity of our drinking

         17  water, and that the City should not be embarking on

         18  a project that they cannot afford and does not need.

         19                 Finally, we maintain that our

         20  proposal, the safeguarding the water is better from

         21  a public health point of view since it can be

         22  implemented in a far shorter time than the proposed

         23  filtration plan, and will achieve compliance with

         24  all federal and state health related problems.

         25                 Okay, now the first thing we want to
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          2  establish is that Croton Water does not need

          3  filtration, it is high quality water.  Now what is

          4  always done, if you are going to filter the water,

          5  you have to denigrate it in order to - -  excuse me.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Let me just

          7  jump in for a second, if I could, and this is also

          8  directed to David Ferguson as well.  We have a very

          9  specific item on the agenda, which has to do- -

         10                 MS. ROSE:  I am coming to that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: With the water

         12  rate setting, and I am very aware of the HFDC and

         13  Clean Water Coalition issues and stance regarding --

         14                 MS. ROSE:  If you would - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I am just,

         16  please, allow me to finish.  And I understand, and

         17  as you know, your staff in conversation with my

         18  staff on a hearing that we plan to have on this

         19  issue.  And although, there is an oblique connection

         20  between your main issue, which is Croton filtration

         21  and, you know, water rates and all that, I mean, I

         22  need you to focus on the less oblique items, because

         23  we have the hearing that is scheduled to start.

         24                 So to the extent that you could, you

         25  know, those aspects of your testimony that are
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          2  directly relevant to today's agenda, that is what we

          3  have to hear, and we cannot hear anything else.

          4                 MS. ROSE:  Well, according to the DEP

          5  Commissioner, today's agenda was on how much money

          6  should be spent on infrastructure,  on different

          7  projects for the DEP, and the fact that they are

          8  hard put to decide how to spend this money and on

          9  which projects.

         10                 And all I am saying is, if you want

         11  to save the City a billion dollars, do not build

         12  this filtration plant, because we can safeguard the

         13  safety, the drinking water for much less, much

         14  sooner.  But if you do not want to hear how to do

         15  that, then I will stop.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well that is

         17  not, I am being misunderstood.  The oversight

         18  hearing is on, you know, water rate setting.  And we

         19  are talking a little bit about the capital plan. And

         20  I well know the position of the Clean Water

         21  Coalition and your position on filtration and how it

         22  can save money, and that is why I am planning to

         23  have a hearing on that.  And so, I cannot convene

         24  any mini- hearing just on Croton filtration at the

         25  tail end of a hearing that was really on another

                                                            141

          1  FINANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  subject.

          3                 MS. ROSE:  Well you had not informed

          4  us that you were going to hold such a hearing,

          5  although, we have been asking for one for a long

          6  time.

          7                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  If I may, I

          8  will address the issues at hand very briefly.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Pardon.

         10                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  In regards to

         11  the Preconsidered Resolution, we are not against it,

         12  we have no objections to it.  In regards to

         13  Resolution 794, we strongly support it.

         14                 The one point that I would like to

         15  make, a reminder, is the pressures that are being

         16  placed on affordable housing in regards all the

         17  different increases that are taking place.  The

         18  Commissioner referred to the three legs, that is

         19  water, transportation, and housing.  Well, housing

         20  is suffering tremendously.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Absolutely.

         22                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  They are

         23  increasing insurance, they increase us in property

         24  taxes, they increase us in water rate, which has,

         25  you know, gone up 200 percent in the last 10 years,
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          2  and expect it to double again.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          4                 MR. REYES- MONTBLANC:  All these

          5  pressures are having a tremendous impact in our HFDC

          6  co- ops, which are mostly the working poor, actually

          7  the poorest of the working poor, the seniors on

          8  limited income, and the impact of any increases at

          9  this popular time would be very, very deleterious to

         10  the health of the co- ops.

         11                 That is all I have to say, Sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         13  thank you very much.  And I just want to reinforce

         14  to everyone here that the Committee is looking into

         15  the issue of Croton filtration, and we, very much

         16  like to, you know, have your views in sort of like

         17  the full and appropriate setting, dedicated to that

         18  issue.

         19                 MS. ROSE:  Well thank you very much.

         20  And I would think that you would be very interested

         21  in knowing how you can save substantial money for

         22  the City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Absolutely.

         24                 MS. ROSE: And I would have thought

         25  you would want to hear about that, and I am
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          2  surprised that you are not.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Please, please,

          4  Ms. Rose, if you wish to make a brief statement.

          5  Okay, thank you.  Thank you all very much.  The

          6  hearing is adjourned.

          7                 (The hearing adjourned at 1:15 p.m.)
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